
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â Amy Dredge 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 863100   Ebost: dredga@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 7 Tachwedd 2018 

 
Annwyl Syr/Fadam, 
 
Bydd cyfarfod Cabinet yn cael ei gynnal yn Ystafell Sirhywi, Tŷ Penallta, Tredomen, Ystrad Mynach ar 
Dydd Mercher, 14eg Tachwedd, 2018 am 10.30 am. i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda 
canlynol.  Gall cynghorwyr a'r cyhoedd sy'n dymuno siarad am unrhyw eitem wneud hynny drwy wneud 
cais i'r Cadeirydd. Mae croeso i chi hefyd ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod.  Mae'r ddau gais hyn yn 
gofyn am gyfnod rhybudd o 3 diwrnod gwaith, a bydd cyfieithu ar y pryd yn cael ei ddarparu os gofynnir 
amdano. 
 
 
 
 

 
Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

PRIF WEITHREDWR DROS DRO 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Tudalennau 
  

1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mae pob cyfarfod Pwyllgor yn agored i'r Wasg a'r Cyhoedd. Gofynnir i arsylwyr a chyfranogwyr 
ymddwyn gyda pharch ac ystyriaeth at eraill. Sylwer y bydd methu â gwneud hynny yn golygu y 
gofynnir i chi adael y cyfarfodydd ac efallai y cewch eich hebrwng o'r safle. 
 

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus



2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 
 
Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau personol 
a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â Deddf 
Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr a 
Swyddogion. 
 
 
I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:- 
 
 
3  Cabinet a gynhaliwyd ar 31 Hydref 2018.  

1 - 4 
 

I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) canlynol y mae angen penderfyniadau gweithredol arnynt 
 
 
4  Cynigion Cyllideb Drafft ar gyfer 2019/20.  

5 - 20 
 

5  Rhybudd o Gynnig - Strategaeth Chwaraeon a Hamdden 2019-2029.  
21 - 26 

 
6  Strategaeth Ddrafft Chwaraeon a Hamdden Egnïol 2019-29.  

27 - 110 
 

 
Cylchrediad: 
 
Cynghorwyr 
 
 C.J. Cuss, N. George, C.J. Gordon, Mrs B. A. Jones, P.A. Marsden, S. Morgan, L. Phipps, D.V. Poole a 
Mrs E. Stenner1 
 
A Swyddogion Priodol. 
 
SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH 
 

Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod 
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys 
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.  
 
Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas â’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym 
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu. 
 
Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i’r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd 
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd  neu cysylltwch â Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy 
e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk  neu ffoniwch  01443 863028. 

 

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd


  

  

 
CABINET 

 

COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD YN NHŶ PENALLTA, TREDOMEN, 
DDYDD MERCHER, 31 HYDREF 2018, AM 10.30AM. 

 

 
YN BRESENNOL: 

 
Y Cynghorydd D. Poole – Cadeirydd 

 
Cynghorwyr: 

 
 C. Cuss (Gofal Cymdeithasol a Lles), N. George (Gwasanaethau'r Gymdogaeth), C.J. Gordon 

(Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol), Mrs B.A. Jones (Cyllid, Perfformiad a Llywodraethu), P. 
Marsden (Addysg a Chyflawniad), S. Morgan (Economi, Isadeiledd a Chynaliadwyedd), L. 
Phipps (Cartrefi a Lleoedd), a Mrs E. Stenner (Yr Amgylchedd a Diogelwch y Cyhoedd).  

 
Ynghyd â: 

 
 D. Street (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles), M. S. Williams 

(Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Dros Dro – Cymunedau), R. Edmunds (Cyfarwyddwr 
Corfforaethol – Addysg a Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol), R. Tranter (Pennaeth Gwasanaethau 
Cyfreithiol a Swyddog Monitro), M. Lloyd (Pennaeth Isadeiledd), ac A. Dredge (Swyddog 
Gwasanaethau Pwyllgor). 
 

Hefyd yn bresennol: 
 

 N. Jenkins ac S. Jones (Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru). 
 

 
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 
 
 Cafwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan C. Harrhy (Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro). 
 
  
2. DATGANIAD O DDIDDORDEB 
 

Ni chafwyd datganiadau o ddiddordeb ar ddechrau'r cyfarfod, nac yn ystod y cyfarfod.  
 
  
3. CABINET – 17 HYDREF 2018 
 

PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 17 Hydref 2018 
(cofnod rhifau 1–7), a'u llofnodi fel cofnod cywir. 

 
 
MATERION A OEDD ANGEN PENDERFYNIADAU GWEITHREDOL 
  

4. ADRODDIAD GWELLA BLYNYDDOL 2017/18 
 

Croesawodd y Cadeirydd N. Jenkins ac S. Jones, o Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru, i'r cyfarfod. 
Rhoesant amlinelliad o negeseuon allweddol eu Hadroddiad Gwella Blynyddol (atodiad i 

Page 1

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3



  

Adroddiad y Swyddog) a gyhoeddwyd ddiwedd mis Awst 2018. Mae'r Adroddiad Gwella 
Blynyddol yn barnu a yw'r Cyngor wedi cydymffurfio, ac a yw'n debygol o gydymffurfio, â'r 
ddyletswydd statudol i gydymffurfio â Mesur Llywodraeth Leol (Cymru) 2009 i ‘wneud 
trefniadau i sicrhau gwelliant parhaus’. Ar gyfer 2017/18, dyfarniad Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru 
oedd: “Mae’r Cyngor yn cyflawni ei ofynion statudol o ran gwelliant parhaus.” 
 
Cyfeiriwyd y Cabinet at dudalen 6, Atodiad 1, sy'n rhoi crynodeb byr o'r gwaith a wnaed yn 
2017/18. Mae hyn yn cynnwys yr adolygiad, ‘Craffu: Addas ar gyfer y Dyfodol’, a gyflawnwyd 
ym mis Gorffennaf 2018. Mae'r adolygiad yn cynnwys tri chynnig ar gyfer gwella. Cafodd yr 
adolygiad ei gyflwyno, a'i drafod, yn ystod cyfarfod Grŵp Arweinyddiaeth Craffu ar 11 Hydref 
2018 a chyfarfod y Pwyllgor Archwilio ar 16 Hydref 2018. Mae'r Adroddiad Gwella Blynyddol 
yn nodi bod y Cyngor wedi cydymffurfio â'i ddyletswydd o ran cynllunio ac adrodd ar welliant, 
drwy ei Amcanion Llesiant cyhoeddedig, a'r asesiad o berfformiad yn yr Adroddiad 
Perfformiad Blynyddol ar gyfer y flwyddyn 2016/17. Darparodd Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru 
dystysgrifau cadarnhau bod y dyletswyddau hyn wedi'u cyflawni, a derbyniwyd y rhain gan y 
Pwyllgor Archwilio fel eitemau gwybodaeth ar 14 Mehefin 2017 a 30 Ionawr 2018. Pan ddaw 
adroddiadau unigol i law, fe'u hadroddir i'r Aelodau drwy gydol y flwyddyn, ac mae'r Adroddiad 
Gwella Blynyddol yn grynodeb o'r allbynnau unigol hynny. Yna, cyfeiriwyd at y rhestr o waith 
Archwilio Perfformiad sy'n weddill i'w gwblhau gan Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru sy'n dal i fynd 
rhagddo a chaiff ei adrodd yn yr Adroddiad Gwella Blynyddol nesaf. Ymhlith y meysydd mae:- 
Adolygiad Thematig: Adolygiad o safbwynt defnyddwyr gwasanaethau; Gwaith Lleol: 
Adolygiad o'r Portffolio Gwella Busnes; a Gwaith Lleol: Gwaith Dilynol SATC. Eglurwyd 
argymhellion adroddiadau cenedlaethol 2017-18 yn Atodiad 3, a oedd yn grynodeb o'r 
cynigion ar gyfer gwella sy'n berthnasol i lywodraeth leol, sydd wedi'u cynnwys mewn 
adroddiadau cenedlaethol a gyhoeddwyd gan Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru ers cyhoeddi'r 
Adroddiad Gwella Blynyddol diwethaf. 
 
Wrth gloi, diolchodd cynrychiolwyr Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru i'r Cyngor am weithio gyda 
Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru, a chydweithredu â hi, drwy gydol y flwyddyn. Yn ei dro, diolchodd y 
Cabinet i'r Swyddogion am baratoi adroddiad mor eang, a chadarnhau bod y Cyngor wedi 
ymrwymo i welliant parhaus yn ei swyddogaeth Craffu. 
 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn 
cael ei gymeradwyo. Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD, am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn yr adroddiad, i nodi ei gynnwys. 
 
 

5. CYNNIG I SEFYDLU CRONFA WRTH GEFN WEDI'I CHLUSTNODI AR GYFER 
BUDDSODDI MEWN TECHNOLEG DDIGIDOL 

 
 Ceisiodd yr adroddiad gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i sefydlu cronfa wrth gefn wedi'i chlustnodi, 

o'r tanwariant net rhagamcanol o gyllideb refeniw 2018/19 ar gyfer Addysg a Gwasanaethau 
Corfforaethol, er mwyn hwyluso buddsoddi mewn Technoleg Ddigidol i drawsnewid y 
Gwasanaethau i Gwsmeriaid yn yr Awdurdod. 
 
Dywedwyd wrth y Cabinet fod yr Awdurdod, ar hyn o bryd, yn defnyddio nifer o becynnau 
meddalwedd i gefnogi rhyngweithio rhwng cwsmeriaid a'r Awdurdod. Ar y cyfan, systemau 
annibynnol yw'r rhain, a phrin yw'r rhyngweithio o'r naill ben i'r llall, sy'n golygu llawer o waith 
ail-gofnodi ac ymyrraeth gan staff. Cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol fod y system 
bresennol ar gyfer Rheoli Cysylltiadau Cwsmeriaid yn llwyfan fewnol â chyfleoedd cyfyngedig 
i wella, ac nid yw'r system yn addas i'r diben ar hyn o bryd. Dywedwyd y bydd trawsnewidiad 
digidol yn treiddio trwy bob diwydiant. Mae'r Awdurdod wrthi'n datblygu ei ddull gweithredu a'i 
Strategaeth Digidol. Mae hyder mewn technoleg ddigidol yn newid y ffordd y mae cwsmeriaid 
am ryngweithio â'r sector cyhoeddus. Er mwyn i'r Awdurdod ddatblygu ei arlwy technoleg 
ddigidol a'r profiad i'w gwsmeriaid, mae angen buddsoddi mewn technoleg newydd. 
Dywedodd fod y Gyfadran wedi sicrhau arbedion cytûn untro yn gynharach na'r disgwyl ac 
wedi galluogi rhyddhau arian i gefnogi'r gronfa wrth gefn hon wedi'i chlustnodi. Cyflawnwyd 

Page 2



  

hyn drwy reoli swyddi mewn ffordd ragweithiol a gwella effeithlonrwydd. Yn ddiweddar, mae 
Swyddogion wedi cyflwyno systemau digidol a fydd yn sicrhau effeithlonrwydd busnes ac yn 
trawsnewid y Gwasanaethau i Gwsmeriaid. Cyfeiriwyd yr Aelodau at Atodiad 1 i'r adroddiad, a 
oedd yn rhoi'r manylion am y dyfynbris a gafwyd drwy'r fframwaith G-Cloud - Abavus Ltd. 
Mae'r cynnig ar gyfer system i fentrau sy'n darparu ar gyfer cyfres lawn o raglenni sy'n 
cefnogi'r sefydliad wrth iddo drawsnewid y Gwasanaethau i Gwsmeriaid a'r rhaglen ymgysylltu 
â chwsmeriaid. Mae'r cynnig, ar hyn o bryd, yn amcangyfrif costau gweithredu llawn, gan 
gynnwys gwaith integreiddio a hyfforddi. Nododd yr Aelodau y bydd staff mewnol, sydd â'r 
gallu a'r setiau sgiliau cywir, yn y Gwasanaeth Technoleg Gwybodaeth, yn ymgymryd â 
rhywfaint o'r gwaith integreiddio a hyfforddi yn fewnol gyda rhywfaint o gymorth arbenigol 
allanol. Bwriedir caffael y trwyddedau i fentrau sydd eu hangen ar gyfer nifer diderfyn o 
ddefnyddwyr am gost o £72,500 y flwyddyn am bedair blynedd, sef cyfanswm cost o 
£290,000. Bydd hyn yn gadael balans o £210,000 yn y gronfa wrth gefn arfaethedig sydd 
wedi'i chlustnodi, ac argymhellir bod y swm hwn yn cael ei ddefnyddio ar gyfer caffael y 
gwaith integreiddio a hyfforddi gofynnol yn ôl yr angen, mewn ymgynghoriad â'r Cyfarwyddwr 
Addysg a Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol a'r Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Corfforaethol. Yn 
y tymor hwy, rhagwelir y bydd yr arbedion effeithlonrwydd a geir drwy ffyrdd gwell o weithio yn 
darparu'r cyllid ar gyfer talu'r costau blynyddol y tu hwnt i'r cytundeb pedair blynedd 
cychwynnol. 
 
Trafododd y Cabinet y cynigion, a dod i'r farn y bydd y cyfeiriad strategol hwn yn galluogi'r 
Awdurdod i ddatblygu seilwaith digidol addas ar gyfer Gwasanaethau i Gwsmeriaid. Bydd hyn 
yn darparu system hawdd ei deall a'i defnyddio ar gyfer cwsmeriaid, a bydd y Swyddogion yn 
trafod darparu hyfforddiant ar gyfer aelodau o'r cyhoedd. Gofynnodd yr Aelodau am roi 
gwybod i'r holl Gynghorau Tref a Chynghorau Cymuned am y system newydd adeg ei rhoi ar 
waith. 

  
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn 
cael ei gymeradwyo. Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 

 

PENDERFYNWYD, yn amodol ar y rhesymau sydd wedi'u cynnwys yn adroddiad y 
Swyddog, i gymeradwyo sefydlu cronfa wrth gefn wedi'i chlustnodi i ariannu'r canlynol: 

 
(i) Caffael y trwyddedau i fentrau yn y lle cyntaf drwy'r fframwaith G-Cloud am gost o 

£72,500 y flwyddyn am bedair blynedd (cyfanswm cost o £290,000); 
 

(ii) £210,000 ar gyfer costau gwaith integreiddio a hyfforddi, a fydd yn cael ei gytuno 
gan y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol mewn ymgynghoriad â'r 
Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Corfforaethol yn ôl y gofyn. 

 
 
6. ADRODDIAD AR Y CYNLLUN CYNNAL A CHADW PRIFFYRDD 
 

Ceisiodd yr adroddiad gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet ar gyfer gweithredu'r Cynllun Cynnal a 
Chadw Priffyrdd newydd. 
 
Hysbyswyd y Cabinet o'r dyletswyddau helaeth sy'n deillio o Ddeddf Priffyrdd 1980 a'r angen i 
gael cynllun a dull gweithredu ar gyfer gwaith cynnal a chadw wedi'u dogfennu a'u 
cymeradwyo'n llawn. Mae'r Ddeddf yn ffurfio sail gyfreithiol ar gyfer rheoli'r briffordd, 
hawliadau ac achosion cyfreithiol. Mae'r risgiau sy'n deillio o'r swyddogaeth hon yn debygol o 
waethygu wrth i gyllidebau cynnal a chadw priffyrdd ddod o dan bwysau cynyddol drwy gwtogi 
ar y gyllideb. Ym mis Hydref 2016, cyhoeddodd UK Roads Liaison Group Gôd Ymarfer – sef 
‘Well-Managed Highway Infrastructure; er nad yw'n orfodol, mae'n amlygu arfer da. Dyddiad 
gweithredu'r Côd Ymarfer newydd yw mis Hydref 2018, pan ddylai'r Awdurdodau Priffyrdd fod 
wedi adolygu eu gweithdrefnau, eu polisïau a'u harferion yn unol ag argymhellion y Côd. 
Eglurodd y Swyddogion fod rhaid i Awdurdodau arfer eu barn eu hunain ar y Côd Ymarfer 
hwn, ond, os na fyddant wedi dilyn y canllawiau perthnasol a geir yn y Côd, bydd disgwyl 
iddynt roi rhesymau da dros fynd yn groes iddo. Mae'r Cynllun Cynnal a Chadw Priffyrdd yn 

Page 3



  

darparu dogfen eang ar gyfer materion ffyrdd cerbydau, troedffyrdd, goleuadau'r strydoedd, a 
strwythurau. Mae'n nodi'r prosesau a'r gweithdrefnau i archwilio, adrodd, ymgymryd â'r camau 
angenrheidiol, a chofnodi'r gwaith a wneir ar asedau ffyrdd cerbydau a throedffyrdd. Mae 
hefyd yn ffurfio sail amddiffyniad cyfreithiol y Cyngor yn erbyn hawliadau yswiriant, ar gyfer 
anaf personol a difrod i eiddo/cerbydau, a wnaed ar y briffordd. Datblygwyd y Cynllun gan 
ystyried argymhellion y Côd Ymarfer newydd. Yn ogystal, mae pob ffordd ar hyd a lled y 
Fwrdeistref wedi'i hasesu yn ystod y broses hon. 
 
Roedd yr Aelodau'n falch o nodi mai Caerffili yw'r Awdurdod cyntaf yng Nghymru i gyhoeddi 
Cynllun Cynnal a Chadw Priffyrdd newydd i gydymffurfio â'r canllawiau hyn, a chafwyd 
trafodaeth ynglŷn â'r amserlenni atgyweirio cyfredol ac arfaethedig y cyfeirir atynt ym 
mharagraff 4.12 yn yr adroddiad. Dywedodd y Swyddog fod yr adroddiad hwn wedi'i gyflwyno 
i'r Pwyllgor Craffu – Adfywio a'r Amgylchedd – ar 30 Hydref 2018, a chytunwyd yn unfrydol ar 
yr argymhellion yn y cyfarfod hwnnw.  
 
Ategodd y Cabinet argymhellion yr adroddiad, a dangos eu gwerthfawrogiad i'r Rheolwr 
Cynnal a Chadw Priffyrdd a'r Tîm Priffyrdd am y gwaith manwl a wnaed o ran y Cynllun 
Cynnal a Chadw Priffyrdd. Trafodwyd yr arian grant a gafwyd hyd yn hyn ac, o ran edrych ar 
faterion ariannu yn y dyfodol, bydd y Swyddogion hefyd yn gweithio gyda Bwrdd y Prosiect 
Adfywio ynglŷn â chyfleoedd megis datblygu prosiectau sydd wedi'u ‘gadael ar y silff’ a fydd o 
gymorth pan fydd cyfleoedd arian grant newydd yn codi yn y dyfodol. Roedd yr Aelod Cabinet 
dros yr Economi, Isadeiledd a Chynaliadwyedd yn falch o ddweud wrth yr Aelodau fod y Tîm 
Priffyrdd wedi'i enwebu ar gyfer Gwobr y Gymdeithas Rhagoriaeth mewn Gwasanaeth 
Cyhoeddus (‘APSE’) ar gyfer gwobr y perfformiwr gorau ym maes priffyrdd, a chynhelir y 
seremoni ym mis Rhagfyr 2018. 
 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn 
cael ei gymeradwyo. Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 

  
PENDERFYNWYD, yn amodol ar y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn Adroddiad y Swyddog:- 
 
(i) yn unol â'r Côd Ymarfer newydd, i gefnogi'r defnydd o'r fethodoleg hon ar gyfer 

gwaith cynnal a chadw priffyrdd yn y dyfodol; 
 

(ii) cefnogi'r newidiadau a nodwyd ar gyfer gwaith arolygu'r rhwydwaith yn Atodiad 
2; 

 
(iii) cefnogi'r cynnig a nodwyd ym mharagraff 4.12 i ddiwygio'r amserlen ar gyfer 

atgyweirio diffygion nad ydynt yn rhai brys a'r cynnig i gadw'r amserlen ar gyfer 
atgyweirio diffygion brys. 

 
 

Terfynwyd y cyfarfod am 11.00am. 
 

Cymeradwywyd a llofnodwyd ei fod yn gofnod cywir yn amodol ar unrhyw gywiriadau a wneir 
yn y cyfarfod a gynhelir ar 14 Tachwedd 2018. 
 
 

____________________ 
CADEIRYDD 

Page 4



 

 

 
CABINET - 14TH NOVEMBER 2018 

 
SUBJECT: DRAFT BUDGET PROPOSALS FOR 2019/20 
 
REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION & CORPORATE SERVICES  
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To present Cabinet with details of draft budget proposals for the 2019/20 financial year to 

allow for a period of consultation prior to a final decision by Council on the 21st February 2019.  
 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The report provides details of draft budget proposals based on the Welsh Government (WG) 

Provisional 2019/20 Local Government Financial Settlement.  
 
2.2 The report also provides details of draft savings proposals along with a higher than forecast 

council tax rise, that provide a set of proposals to cover a savings target of £15.6m for 
2019/20 to enable the Authority to set a balanced budget.  

 
 
3. LINKS TO STRATEGY 
 
3.1 The budget setting process encompasses all the resources used by the Council to deliver 

services and meet priorities. 
 
3.2 Effective financial planning and the setting of a balanced budget support the following Well-

being Goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015: - 
 

• A prosperous Wales. 
• A resilient Wales. 
• A healthier Wales. 
• A more equal Wales. 
• A Wales of cohesive communities. 
• A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language. 
• A globally responsible Wales. 

 
 
4. THE REPORT 
 
4.1 Headline Issues in the Provisional Settlement 
 
4.1.1 Published on the 9th October 2018, the key points of the WG Provisional 2019/20 Local 

Government Financial Settlement are the following: -  
 

• An overall net cash decrease of 0.3% in the Aggregate External Finance (Revenue 
Support Grant (RSG) and Redistributed Non-Domestic Rates) on an all-Wales basis 
compared to 2018/19.  This includes additional funding for Free School Meals of £7m, 
Social Care of £20m and Teachers Pay of £13.7m.  These are all cost pressures that 
need to be funded. 

Page 5

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 4



• The headline All Wales average Aggregate External Finance (AEF) reduction includes a 
range across authorities.  This is due to the funding formula.  There is a range from a 1% 
decrease to a 0.4% increase for 2019/20. 

• For Caerphilly CBC there is a cash decrease of £560k which is a 0.21% reduction in the 
AEF compared to the 2018/19 financial year. 

• WG have not provided an all-Wales indicative percentage reduction/increase in AEF for 
the 2020/21 financial year. 

• The Capital allocations available to Caerphilly CBC in the RSG and from the General 
Capital Grant have decreased by £23k from the 2018/19 financial year. 

 
4.1.2 As in previous years there is still uncertainty in respect of WG grant funding for 2019/20.  It is 

anticipated that grant funding will reduce. 
 
4.2 2019/20 Draft Budget Proposals 
 
4.2.1 The proposals contained within this report will deliver a balanced budget for 2019/20, along 

with some savings in advance, on the basis that Council Tax is increased by 6.95%.  Table 1 
provides a summary: -  

 
Table 1 – Summary 

 
Paragraph Description £m £m 

4.2.3 – 4.2.9 Whole-Authority cost pressures 14.106  
4.2.12 – 4.2.18 Inescapable service pressures 4.130  

4.1.1 Reduction in WG funding 0.560  
4.3.1 Draft savings proposals 2019/20  14.660 
4.3.3 Savings in advance 0.251  

4.4.1 – 4.4.2 Council Tax uplift (6.95%)  4.387 
 TOTAL 19.047 19.047 

 
4.2.2 Cabinet should note that the draft budget proposals include growth for Schools in 2019/20 to 

cover all pay related, non-pay and demographic growth pressures.  There is no requirement in 
the Provisional Settlement to protect Schools.  Appendix 2 proposes a savings target for 
schools of £2.1m.  This in effect equates to a real terms cut of circa 2%.  However, this needs 
to be considered alongside the need to deliver savings of £15.6m for 2019/20.Schools spend 
is approximately 30% of net available budgetary spend.  Hence the £2.1m savings proposal 
i.e. 13% of the total savings required does provide relative protection to schools from the full 
extent of savings required to deliver a balanced budget. 

 
4.2.3 The whole Authority cost pressures totalling £14.106m are set out in Table 2 below - 
 
 Table 2 – Whole Authority Cost Pressures 
 

 £m 
Pay – APT&C and Teachers 5.332 
Foundation Living Wage  0.070 
Employer pension contributions – APT&C, Teachers and Fire Service 4.517 
Non-pay inflation at 2.4% 3.526 
School service pressures(including schools new pay and grading) 0.621 
Other passported grants 0.040 
TOTAL 14.106 

 
4.2.4 Pay – 2.2% APT&C and 3.5% Teachers - The pay award for the 2019/20 financial year has 

been fully funded as a growth pressure for both APT&C staff and Teachers.  The increased 
costs are split in Appendix 1 between Schools and General Fund.  A grant will be made 
available from WG to fund the increase in Teachers pay from 1st September 2018 to 
31st March 2019; this grant funding has then been transferred into the RSG for 2019/20. 

 

Page 6



4.2.5 Foundation Living Wage – Caerphilly CBC is a Living Wage Foundation employer so a sum 
is included in the draft budget proposals to allow for annual increases in the Foundation Living 
Wage hourly rate compared to the National Living Wage hourly rate that is now factored into 
the new Pay and Grading’s growth detailed below in para 4.2.17. 

 
4.2.6 Employer pension contributions( APT&C staff) – Following the outcome of the most recent 

triennial valuation of the Pension Fund, Caerphilly CBC is required to increase its pension 
contribution by £1,007k (1.0%) for the 2019/20 financial year. 

 
4.2.7 Employer pension contributions (Teachers and Fire Service) – A significant additional 

growth pressure has presented itself in the last few months in respect of increased employer 
pension contributions for Teachers (£3,205k) and the Fire Service (£305k).  These are 
‘unfunded’ schemes, the Authority has no choice but to pay over the increase in employers 
costs in accordance with the rate as determined by Central Government.  There is likely to be 
a ‘one off’ payment made by Treasury to cover these 2019/20 costs, albeit that this has not 
been confirmed.  Furthermore there is no certainty that the ‘one off’ funding will cover the 
actual costs for 2019/20.  The overall total increased costs in respect of these employer 
pension contribution increases will then roll into 2020/21 and be considered for funding by 
Central Government as part of the comprehensive spending review in 2019.  It must be 
emphasised that there is much uncertainty around the funding of this significant growth 
pressure both for 2019/20 and on-going. 

 
4.2.8 Non-pay inflation at 2.4% - The Consumer Prices Index (CPI) inflation rate was 2.4% in 

August 2018, in September it fell to 2.2%.  The situation will remain under review prior to final 
budget proposals, but members are reminded that this area was not fully funded for 2018/19. 

 
4.2.9 Schools Service Pressures – this includes funding for pupil demographic growth and 

formula funding growth required in the main for premises related costs.  There is also an 
amount of £230k for growth for the new Pay and Grading’s structure in respect of school 
based staff. 

 
4.2.10 Other Passported Grants –There is a transfer in of £242k that represents anticipated growth 

in free school meal numbers as a consequence of changes to eligibility criteria as a result of 
the introduction of Universal Credit.  There is a reduction of £202k primarily relating to PFI 
funding that was anticipated. 

 
4.2.11 It is incumbent upon Council to set a realistic budget each year.  Table 3 provides details of 

the 2019/20 inescapable service commitments/pressures that have been identified and 
require consideration in respect of funding: - 

 
Table 3 – Inescapable Service Pressures and Other Service Commitments 

 
 £M  
CTRS Additional Liability 0.958 
Social Services cost pressures 1.500 
City Deal partnership revenue contribution and Debt 
charges 

0.067 

EOTAS 0.800 
Dry Recycling 0.400 
New pay and Grading’s Structure 0.405 
TOTAL 4.130 

 
4.2.12 CTRS Additional Liability – the Authority is required to fund a Council Tax Reduction 

Scheme (CTRS).  This replaced Council Tax Benefit a few years ago.  The CTRS is a means 
tested benefit that assists in full or part towards a resident’s council tax bills. 

 
4.2.13 Social Services cost pressures - Cabinet will recall that the 2018/19 budget included 

additional funding of £1.5m for Social Services cost pressures.  This has been necessary to 
fund increases in fees for external care providers due in the main to the introduction of the 

Page 7



National Living Wage, and additional costs arising from increasing demand for services in 
both Adult and Children’s Services.  It is proposed that a further sum of £1.5m should be 
allocated in the 2019/20 budget to meet ongoing financial pressures for Social Services. 

 
4.2.14 City Deal partnership revenue contribution and City Deal Debt Charges – There is a 

small increase required for 2019/20 in respect of the revenue contribution of £6k for the City 
Deal Partnership.  The City Deal includes a borrowing requirement of £120m for the ten 
partner Local Authorities.  An additional £61k is required for 2019/20 to meet the current 
anticipated cost for Caerphilly CBC’s share of potential borrowing that may be undertaken 
during the 2019/20 financial year.  

 
4.2.15 Education Other Than At School (EOTAS) – Members will be aware of a continuing 

overspend in respect of costs relating to EOTAS.  These have been regularly reported to 
Education for Life Scrutiny as part of Budget Monitoring arrangements.  The spend has been 
reviewed and is unlikely to reduce in the short term without a thorough review of service areas 
that comprise EOTAS.  Hence growth has been proposed of £800k to deal with the on-going 
pressures. 

 
4.2.16 Dry Recycling increased costs - Members will again be aware of the increased costs 

relating to dry recycling.  These have been previously reported to Cabinet and Scrutiny.  It 
was hoped that the costs associated with the contracts to recycle dry tonnage would reduce.  
An earmarked reserve, previously approved by Council, was utilised while contracts were 
renegotiated and the market monitored.  Unfortunately this area continues to be a growth 
pressure, hence growth is proposed of £800k spread evenly across 2019/20 and 2020/21.  
This has been possible due to the fact that there is an estimated £400k of previously agreed 
earmarked reserve available for 2019/20. 

 
4.2.17 New Pay and Grading Structure - The Council as part of National Terms and conditions for 

APT&C staff will be required to use a new range of salary scale points from April 2019.  This 
will mean that some grades of staff will see an increase in their salaries.  The increases are 
predominately in the lower grade ranges.  It is estimated that growth is required of £230k for 
schools and £405k for other services to accommodate these changes.  There will be a 
separate report presented to cabinet on these new proposals 

 
4.2.18 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) review – A review of the Council’s PFI contracts is currently 

being undertaken.  These contracts relate to Fleur de Lys (Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni) and 
Pengam (Lewis Boys) Secondary Schools, and Sirhowy Enterprise Way (SEW).  To assist 
with this review the services of a company called Local Partnerships have been 
commissioned.  This organisation has a proven track record in relation to supporting public 
sector bodies through reviews of operational PFI contracts and was recommended by WG 
Officers anticipate that an options appraisal in respect of these contracts will be presented to 
Cabinet in late Spring/early Summer 2019.In the meantime this is very much work in progress, 
hence the estimated growth required has been moved to the 2020/21 financial year when it 
will be dealt with in the report to Cabinet.  

 
4.3 2019/20 Draft Savings Proposals 
 
4.3.1 Draft savings proposals have been identified for the 2019/20 financial year totalling £14.66m 

as summarised in Table 4: - 
 
 Table 4 – Draft Savings Proposals 2019/20 
 

Description 2019/20 Saving £m 
Savings proposals with no public impact 4.557 
Savings proposals with a public impact: - 

• Low impact 
• Medium impact 
• High impact 

 
5.500 
3.618 
0.985 

TOTAL 14.660 
Page 8



4.3.2 A summary of savings proposals by Directorate/Service Area are provided in Appendix 2 and 
Appendix 3.  The savings proposals are split into 2 categories, those that are permanent and 
those that are temporary (i.e. not sustainable in the short to medium term).  The temporary 
savings are not ideal, but have been unavoidable due to the uncertainties around funding 
particularly in respect of the Teachers and Fire service increased employer pension 
contributions. 

 
4.3.3 The proposed savings in Appendix 2 of £11.298m along with the proposed temporary savings 

in Appendix 3 of £3.362m, with a proposed Council Tax increase of 6.95% will allow for 
savings in advance of £251k and provide a balanced budget position for 2019/20. 

 
4.4 Council Tax Implications 2019/20 
 
4.4.1 The draft budget proposals within this report include a proposed increase of 6.95% in Council 

Tax for the 2019/20 financial year.  This will increase the Caerphilly CBC Band D precept from 
£1,057.70 to £1131.21 i.e. an annual increase of £73.51 or weekly increase of £1.41. 

 
4.4.2 The proposed increase of 6.95% for 2019/20 will result in the following totals for the Caerphilly 

CBC element of the Council Tax (the Police & Crime Commissioner and Town/Community 
Council precepts would be added to these totals when confirmed at a later date): - 

 
 Table 5 – 2019/20 Council Tax (CCBC Element) at 6.95% Increase   
 

Band Council Tax 
(CCBC Element) 

£ 

Weekly 
Increase 

£ 
A 754.14 0.94 
B 879.83 1.10 
C 1005.52 1.26 
D 1131.21 1.41 
E 1382.59 1.73 
F 1633.97 2.04 
G 1885.35 2.36 
H 2262.42 2.83 
I 2639.49 3.30 

 
4.5 Financial Outlook for Future Years 
 
4.5.1 The Medium-Term Financial Plan presented to Council in February 2018 showed a potential 

savings requirement of £34m for the four-year period 2019/20 to 2022/23.  There is currently 
no indicative allocation for 2020/21 provided by WG.  Hence it has been assumed that the 
AEF will continue to reduce by 0.5% for the following 4 years after 2019/20.  The revised 
MTFP assumptions now require savings to be achieved of £44m from 2020/21 to 2023/24. 

 
4.5.2 The Autumn statement 29th October 2018 will result in additional funding to WG as a 

consequence of increased funding for the NHS, Social Care, Schools and Business rates. 
Excluding the NHS consequential this could provide an additional £57m to Wales.  The 
Minister for LG has stated that LG will be a priority when WG considers how to allocate any 
additional funds coming out of this autumn statement.  These 2019/20 Draft Budget proposals 
assume no additional funding compared to the Provisional Settlement, because at this stage 
nothing has been confirmed.  If extra funds are made available prior to the final budget 
decision in 2019, further reports will be updated to reflect this additional funding.  Members 
are reminded of the significant savings that are required in the MTFP and will need to ensure 
a prudent approach in respect of budget setting, which should include making savings in 
advance wherever possible. 

 
4.5.3 In looking to develop proposals to address the significant financial challenges going forward it 

is widely accepted that the Council cannot continue as it is.  There is a need to examine the 
way in which we use our resources to deliver services required by our communities across the 
county borough. 

Page 9



4.5.4 Through the Councils Business Improvement Programme (BIP) strategic reviews will look at 
how services can become more business efficient through examining how they are currently 
provided, exploring opportunities for greater customer focus, digital delivery, alternative 
delivery models, and commercial opportunities, whilst looking at preventative measures that 
will encourage early intervention that will ultimately allow demand for certain services to be 
regulated. 

 
4.5.5 An updated Medium-Term Financial Plan covering the period 2019/20 to 2023/24 is attached 

as Appendix 1.  
 
 
5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
5.1 Effective financial planning is a key element in ensuring that the Well-being Goals within the 

Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 are met. 
 
 
6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 An equalities impact assessment (EIA) will be completed for all of the 2019/20 savings 

proposals.  This is to ensure that decisions that affect different individuals and groups are 
assessed at an appropriate and relevant level and at the correct stage in the process.  It is 
anticipated that all EIA’s will be available on the council’s website from the 14th November 
2018. 

 
6.2 Consultation with residents, when done in accordance with the Council’s Public Engagement 

Strategy and the Equalities Consultation and Monitoring Guidance, also ensures that every 
resident, regardless of circumstances, has the opportunity to have their views heard and 
considered in the Council’s decision-making process. 

 
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 As detailed throughout the report. 
 
 
8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 Where staff reductions are required as a consequence of savings proposals the Council will 

firstly try to achieve this through ‘natural wastage’ and not filling vacancies.  However, where 
this is not possible then every opportunity will be taken to find alternative employment through 
the Council’s redeployment policy.  The Council will also utilise other policies as appropriate 
e.g. voluntary severance. 

 
8.2 Expressions of interest recently received from employees to leave the employment of the 

Council via the workforce flexibilities policies are currently being considered to determine 
whether they can assist service areas to achieve savings and to avoid compulsory 
redundancy situations.  Any requests supported will require robust business cases confirming 
the savings and impact on service delivery. 

 
 
9. CONSULTATIONS 
 
9.1 Cabinet is asked to agree that the draft budget proposals for 2019/20 should now be subject 

to a period of consultation prior to final 2019/20 budget proposals being presented to Cabinet 
on the 13th February 2019 and then Council on the 21st February 2019.  The consultation 
process will run from the 19th November 2018 to the 11th January 2019 and will consist of the 
following: - 

 

Page 10



• Online and paper consultation. 
• Articles in Newsline. 
• Use of Social Media. 
• Drop-In Sessions at locations across the County Borough. 
• Meetings with the Viewpoint Panel, 50+ Forum, Youth Forum etc. 
• Engagement with employees and the Trade Unions. 
• Consultation with Town and Community Councils. 
• Consultation with the Voluntary Sector. 
• Posters at affected establishments. 
• Other targeted stakeholder engagement as appropriate. 

 
9.2 As part of the consultation process there will also be a series of Special Scrutiny Committees 

to focus on the savings proposals.  In addition to considering the content of this Cabinet report 
the Scrutiny Committees will receive further reports providing more detail on the savings 
proposals that are expected to have an impact on the public.  The dates of the Special 
Scrutiny Committee meetings are as follows: - 

 
• 03/12/17 – Policy & Resources. 
• 06/12/17 – Health, Social Care & Wellbeing. 
• 17/12/17 – Education for Life. 
• 18/12/17 – Regeneration & Environment. 

 
 
10.  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 Cabinet is asked to: -  
 

10.1.1 Endorse the draft 2019/20 budget proposals including the proposed savings totalling 
£14.66m. 

10.1.2 Support the proposal to increase Council Tax by 6.95% for the 2019/20 financial year 
to ensure that a balanced budget is achieved (Council Tax Band D being set at 
£1131.21). 

10.1.3 Agree that the draft budget proposals should now be subject to consultation prior to 
final 2019/20 budget proposals being presented to Cabinet and Council in February 
2019. 

 
 
11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
11.1 Council is required annually to approve proposals to set a balanced budget and agree a 

Council Tax rate. 
 
11.2 Council is required to put in place a sound and prudent financial framework to support service 

delivery. 
 
 
12. STATUTORY POWER  
 
12.1 The Local Government Acts 1998 and 2003. 
 
 
Author: Nicole Scammell - Head of Corporate Finance and S151 

E-mail: scammn@caerphilly.gov.uk Tel: 01443 863130 
Consultees: Corporate Management Team 
 Steve Harris, Interim Head of Business Improvement Services 
 Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services 
 Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer 
 Finance Managers 

Cllr Dave Poole, Leader 
Cllr Barbara Jones, Deputy Leader & Cabinet Member for Finance, Performance 
and Governance 

Page 11



 
Background Papers: 
WG Provisional 2019/20 Local Government Financial Settlement (9th October 2018). 
Medium-Term Financial Strategy 2019/2024. 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 Updated Medium Term Financial Plan 
Appendix 2 2019/20 Permanent savings Proposals 
Appendix 3 2019/20 Temporary Savings Proposals 
 

Page 12



Updated Medium-Term Financial Plan Appendix 1

Provisional 2019/20 Local Government Settlement (09/10/2018)

Description 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

AEF ( -0.21 % ,-0.50 %,-0.50%, -0.50%,-0.5%) (560) (1,333) (1,327) (1,320) (1,313)
Council Tax ( 4.52 % then 4.52% each year) 2,847 2,995 3,130 3,271 3,419
Total Funding 2,287 1,661 1,803 1,951 2,106

Schools
Teachers Pay   ( 3.5 %, then 2% each year) 2,431 1,502 1,572 1,603 1,635
Foundation Living Wage 0 0 0 0 0
Teachers Employers Pension Contributions (7.12 %) 2,984 2,272 0 0 0
APT&C Pay   ( 2.2% ,2%, 2% 2%) 271 262 269 278 287
APT&C  Employers Pension Contributions ( 1 %, 1%, 1%, 1%) 126 133 137 141 145
New Pay and Grading Structure 230 0 0 0 0
Non-Pay Inflation ( 2.4% ) 454 439 423 432 441
Schools Service Pressures 391 181 301 364 274
Other Passported Grants - Free School Meals 242 0 0 0 0

Total Schools 7,129 4,789 2,702 2,818 2,782

General Fund Services
Pay   ( 2.2% ,2%, 2% 2%) 2,629 2,249 2,294 2,340 2,387
Foundation Living Wage 70 70 70 70 70
Employers Pension Contributions ( 1 %, 1%, 1%, 1%) 881 890 899 908 917
Teachers Employers Pension Contributions (7.21 %) 221
Non-Pay Inflation (2.4% 2.2 % 2.1%, 2.1% ) 3,072 2,753 2,845 2,943 3,046
Non-Pay Inflation (Fees and Charges) - 0%, 0 0 0 0 0

Fire Service Levy (Unfunded Pension Increase  - Additional Contribution) 305 0 0 0 0
New Responsibilities 0 0 0 0 0
Other Passported Grants (202) 0 0 0 0
Welsh Government - specific funding

Total General Fund Services 6,977 5,962 6,108 6,261 6,419

Sub-Total 14,106 10,751 8,810 9,079 9,201

Service Pressures/Additional Funding
CTRS Additional Liability  ( 4.52 % than 4.52% each year) 623 651 681 712 744
Social Services Cost Pressures Contingency 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500
City Deal (Partnership Revenue Contribution) 6 7 6 8 8
City Deal (Debt Charges) 61 44 89 122 171
EOTAS 800
Dry Recycling 400 400
New Pay and Grading Structure 405
PFI Review 0 700
Sub-Total 3,795 3,302 2,276 2,342 2,423

Reinstatement of 2019-20 temporary Savings Proposals 3,362

Annual Shortfall 15,614 15,754 9,283 9,469 9,518

Cumulative Shortfall 15,614 31,368 40,651 50,120 59,638

Page 13



Appendix 2
2019-20 Permanent Savings Proposals

Proposed Saving £000's Comments Public Impact

EDUCATION & LIFELONG LEARNING

Planning and Strategy

Full-year impact of closure of Cwmcarn High School 221
Closure of Cwmcarn High in October 2018. Balance of lump sum funding. £200k reduction in 
2018/19, £221k is the balance following closure. Pupil related funding remains within the formula. Nil

Reduction in Local Management of Schools (LMS) Contingency 
budget to reflect actual spend 40

Reduce budget based on prior years spend. If a formula issue arises in year will need to consider 
the use of LMS Contingency balances - subject to formal approval for use of balances. Low

Outdoor Education - support for FSM pupils attending courses (fund 
through grants instead) 17

Removal of full budget - was set up many years ago to support FSM pupils in accessing outdoor 
education activities. In 2017-18 only 8 (out of 86) schools accessed this funding and all but 1 
have an SRB.Consequently the impact will not be felt across all schools in the Authority. Other 
schools are using PDG funding and where the impact is linked to those in danger of an exclusion 
this will be picked up as part of the SRB Review. Low

1/3rd Reduction in the School Meal Admin. Utility & Telephone 
Budget 10

Schools collecting significant levels of Catering income for Auth.& not funded for Catering utility 
costs on site. Significant staff time commitment within Schools to support this process. £10k 
relates to saving on telephone lines in most schools for Catering - as now using mobiles. Budget 
split - £252k Admin. Reimb. To Primary Schools; £162k Utilities Reimb. to Primary Schools; £10k 
Reimb. to Primary Schools. 

Nil

5% Efficiency target P&S Mgt & Support Services 29
Opportunities with regards to additional income generation – most notably linked to grant funding

Nil

317

Learning, Education and Inclusion
Rising 3's - budget realignment 50 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil

Reduction in School Improvement Initiatives budget 243

Proposal to remove the funding set aside to support schools in difficulty from a school 
improvement perspective. These situations are normally linked to inspection outcomes and more 
recently to national categorisation. As a result of a decreasing number of schools in higher risk 
categories this level of reduction is achievable at this time. There would need to be an 
understanding that should "emergency" funds be required, there is a potential to access funding 
from reserves (subject to the appropriate approval for use of balances). Medium

Visually Impaired Service - 4.4% reduction in contribution 17 Service hosted by Torfaen CBC. The Authority will need to progress with the Lead Authority.. Medium

Education Achievement Service (EAS) - 2% reduction in contribution 48 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Education Improvement Grant (EIG) - Reduction in match-funding 
contribution 27 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
14-19 Transport Initiative - budget realignment 10 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Early Years (Central Team) - budget realignment 20 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil

Education Welfare Service - vacancy management 46

Saving will be in place for 2019/20. Follows a re-modelling of the Service from September 2018 - 
EWO's compliment of 11.24 FTE's reduced to 8.45 FTE's but with a new Administrative Post to 
support the Team. The new model is designed to increase the flexibility of staff in the Team to 
support schools and to not be rigidly fixed to designated schools. Posts already vacant. Low

Reduction in Music Service 50
Workforce requests received in the recent "letters". Need to review & work this through to 
establish the position going forward in respect of staff reductions. Low

511

Lifelong Learning

Community Education (Youth Service) - premises, vacant posts etc. 100 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Community Education (Adult Service) - budget realignment 50 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil

Libraries - Reduction in premises costs, staff and books

85

Current resources budget is £355k. Reduction of £85k in Book Fund. Proposals include : Top 
slicing sections of the book fund to mitigate the impact of the reduction on key customer 
categories including children, older residents & learners; Remove 50% of the allocated funding 
for DVD's with the remaining allocation ring-fenced for popular customer interest areas such as 
children's titles; Significantly increase the proportion of paperback titles to increase the efficiency 
in resource spend and number of titles available; Increase use of South Wales Books4U scheme; 
Review free request service with the intention of reintroducing charges for rare non fiction titles 
which are not cost effective to elect to buy. 

Medium

Libraries - Reduction in premises costs, staff and books 15 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Library Service (Additional £30k to the £100k = £130k) 30 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil

GAVO (Youth Service) - Remove contribution as service can be 
provided by CCBC 25

Removal of full contribution to GAVO - relating to Holiday Scheme Co-Ordinator. Implications for 
GAVO as this funding links to a post. No implications for public as the advice will continue to be 
provided through the Youth Service. [Function is to provide advice & support to any groups 
considering the provision of school holiday period-specific activity for children & young people 
between the age of 8 to 18 years]. Medium

Review of Staffing model in Libraries 50 Need to reference recent workforce requests in respect of the letter. Low

355

Schools - MTFP shortfall

2,126 Schools will be required under their delegated powers to balance their own individual budgets, 
hence they will be required to identify their savings to cover the £2.1m. School budgets are 
typically 80 % staff related hence there will be a reduction in staff in schools Medium

TOTAL Education and Lifelong Learning 3,309

Page 14



Proposed Saving £000's Comments Public Impact

COMMUNITIES

Regeneration and Planning
Reduction in Community Regeneration Fund 50 Impact on Voluntary Organisations Low
Business Support & Funding - vacancy management 25 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Business Support & Funding - budget realignment 10 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Cwmcarn Visitor Centre - increase in income 10 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Events & Marketing - budget realignment 10 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Blackwood Miners Institute - budget realignment 20 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Realignment of staffing budgets at the Winding House 67 To reduce opening hours and staff resource Low
Urban Renewal - budget realignment 4 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Reduction in Town Centre budget 5 Reduction in works in Town Centres Low
Planning Division - vacancy management 42 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Staffing restructure in Regeneration and Planning 125 Mainly Vacant Posts Nil
2% efficiency target for Arts Development budget 3 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Reduction in Events Budgets 47 Reduction in some Events in Town Centres Low

Total Regeneration and Planning 418

Infrastructure

Introduction of bus station departure charges 100 Impact on providers but could result in increase in public charges. Proposed increase 35p per 
departure Low

32% reduction in Carriageway Resurfacing RCCO (capital budget = 
£750k)  53 Deterioration in road quality, increased risk insurance claims Medium
7% reduction in Carriageway Surface Dressing budget 60 Deterioration in road quality, increased risk insurance claims Medium
4% reduction in Highways Reactive Maintenance budget through use 
of Technology (Jetpatcher) 55 New technology providing efficiency Nil
7% reduction in Highways Structures budget 36 Deterioration in infrastructure Low
14% reduction in Traffic Management Maintenance budget 5 Reduction in maintenance and budget efficiency Low
2% reduction in Street Lighting Non-Routine Maintenance budget 9 Reduction in maintenance as a result of new LED technology Nil
8% reduction in other Highways Maintenance budgets 66 Deterioration in infrastructure Medium
Reduction in other miscellaneous Highway/Land Drainage budgets 21 Increased flood risk Medium
Reduction in Risca Canal budget 10 offset by capital enhancement Low
Gulley Cleansing - 1 jetter  to be funded from SLA agreement with 
Another Authority 64 MTCBC SLA Agreement if agreed Nil
Deletion of Community Response Team budget - retirements/non-
essential work 100 Service removed - minor maintenance works Nil
Public Transport - review of contracts with highest subsidy per 
passenger 68 Reduction/termination of some bus routes Medium
Vacancy management (part of wider £200k restructure proposal) 34 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Highways Operations additional income 6 More focussed pursuit of highway recharges Nil
Lunchtime School Crossing Patrols 36 Removal of Lunch Patrol High
9% reduction in Traffic Signal Routine Maintenance budget 11 Contract Efficiency Nil
Reduction in Accident Studies due to contract review 10 Contract Efficiency Nil
Increase in road closure fee income 30 Charge to contractors for all closures with no further event subsidies Nil

Passenger Transport - increase in income 3 Increase in replacement bus pass cards - Change in price (new charge £10 per replacment of 
lost card) Low

Increase in Car Park charges 40 First increase in 8 Years and possible charging on Sunday, proposed increase 20p per tariff Low
Introduction of a charge for residential parking permits 30 Introducing an annual charge in accordance with policy. Recommending £15.00 per permit. Low
Integrated Transport Unit 50 Better utilisation of authority fleet when external contracts are due for renewal Nil
Staffing restructure in Infrastructure Division 166 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil

Total Infrastructure 1,063

Public Protection

Provision of Meals Direct Service to Section 117 clients only 141 Cease meals on wheels service except for clients eligible under Section 117 aftercare, currently 
just 1 individual. Part year saving to allow for implementation. High

Increase price of secondary school meals by 10p from April 2019 
(£2.25 to £2.35) 50 Price increase Low
Increase price of primary school meals by 10p from April 2019 (£2.00 
to £2.10) 54 Price increase Low

Increase price of civic meals by 5%
3

Price increase E.g. • carvery set menu would raise from £4.70 to £4.95
• daily special choice would raise from £4.10 to £4.30
• sandwich would raise from £2.45 to £2.60 Low

Increased catering income from Secondary Schools - budget 
realignment 20 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Cessation of the Community Safety Warden Service 355 Removal of service High
Increase in fee for retrieving stray dogs from Pound 3 Price increase to £75 from £44. Low

Introduction of charges for rat treatments 20 New Charge - £20 (plus VAT) per treatment reducing to £10 (plus VAT) for those on means 
tested benefits. Low

Environmental Health - budget realignment 15 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil

Registrars - increase in ceremony fees 10 Increase in fees which range from 7.5% to 20% depending on day of the week and the venue. Low
Trading Standards - vacancy management 40 Delete Fair Trading Officer post Low
CCTV - reduction in line rental costs 40 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Reduction in CCTV overtime budget 8 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
5% efficiency target for Health Division budgets 12 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
5% efficiency target for Pollution budgets & Emergency Planning 
budgets 26 Delete 0.5 fte Environmental Health Officer post Medium

Total Public Protection 797

Page 15



Proposed Saving £000's Comments Public Impact

Community and Leisure Services
Sport & Leisure - changes in VAT for leisure pricing 50 Some clubs may have to pay more for the service Low
Sport & Leisure - reduction in sport & leisure tutor budgets (budget 
realignment) 75 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Sport & Leisure - reduction in Smart Rewards budget 15 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Sport & Leisure - reduction in Supplies budget including uniforms and 
smartcards 8 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Sport & Leisure - reduction in Caerphilly Adventures budget 12 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Fleet Management - cease use of external diagnostic services and 
provide in-house 10 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Building Cleaning - increase in income 15 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Building Cleaning - budget realignment 31 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Community Centres - withdrawal of funding for 2 Centres (Rudry & 
Glan y Nant) not in CCBC ownership 13 Reduces subsidy to user centre ownership. Glan-y-Nant and Rudry Low
Community Centres - reduction of 1 hour Caretaker support across 
all Centres 18 additional charge from community centres committees Low
Community Centres - reduction of all Caretaker support across all 
Centres from October 79 additional charge from community centres committees needed to fund the caretakers salary. Part 

Year from 1st October 2019 High
Community Centres - closure of 4 Centres (Tirphil, Phillipstown, 
Channel View & Lower Rhymney* (*already closed)) 23 Loss of community centre to users Medium
Parks & Countryside- Bowling Green rationalisation programme 10 Ongoing phased removal of the grants to bowls clubs as previously agreed by Cabinet Nil
Parks & Countryside - review of Pavilion Attendant provision 30 Reduction of pavilion attendant hours. Nil

Parks & Countryside - reduction in Community Asset budget 54 Cessation of minor infrastructure maintenance and upgrades; examples of works include the 
installation of knee rails, gates and barriers etc. Low

Parks & Countryside - vacancy management 18 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Parks & Countryside - reduction in machinery budget 20 Reduced budget to invest in new machinery. Low

Parks & Countryside - reduction in playground maintenance budget 10 Reduced ability to replace play equipment and ultimately could lead to the closure / removal of 
facilities. Low

Parks & Countryside - staffing restructure 44 Reduction in Area Parks staff Low
Parks & Countryside - removal of one application of the weed 
spraying contract 32 Reduced service Low
Green Spaces/Cemeteries - staff restructure 100 Potential redundancy of staff Low
Green Spaces/Cemeteries - reduction in Cemeteries maintenance 
budget 25 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Green Spaces/Cemeteries - reduction in War Memorial maintenance 
budget 15 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Green Spaces/Cemeteries - reduction in Allotments budget 3 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Green Spaces/Cemeteries - increase in Cemeteries income (budget 
realignment) 40 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil

Waste Management - Cleansing staffing reductions 166 filling the vacant posts will increase standard of street cleanliness and would improve resilience 
of service’ Medium

Waste Management - introduction of new scheme of charging for 
bulky waste collections 50 New charge of a charge of £16 for 1 to 3 items (for all items other than fixtures and fittings). Low
Waste Management - rationalisation of farm round waste collection 
service 53 reduced service Low
Waste Management - reduction in mechanical sweeping 193 Reduced service Medium
Waste Management - closure of 2 Civic Amenity Sites 98 2 CA sites are Penallta and Aberbargoed Medium
Waste Management - staffing restructure 34 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Low
Waste Management - reduction in Proactives Initiatives budget 50 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Low
Waste Management - Civic Amenity Sites to shut an additional day 
(assumes 4 remain open) 38 Reduced service Medium
Waste Management - development of an electronic Commercial 
Waste System 5 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Waste Management - closure of all 5 Public Conveniences 74 Closure in all towns (Twyn to stay open as managed within TIC) High
Waste Management - reduction in the level of weekend cleansing 34 Reduces service Medium
Waste Management - off-hire one Supervisor van 6 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Further reduction in Parks and Playing Fields budgets 30 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil

Total Community and Leisure Services 1,580

Corporate Property
Ty Duffryn - standing charges and lease income 394 New lease agreed with Third Party Operators Nil
Enterprise House - termination of lease 67 Staff moving to Tredomen Nil
Reduction in Corporate Property DDA budget 50 Reduced Budget availability Nil
Energy savings from LED lights in Ty Penallta 20 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Reduction in cleaning of Corporate Buildings 15 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil

Total Corporate Property 546

Total Communities 4,404

Page 16



Proposed Saving £000's Comments Public Impact

SOCIAL SERVICES & HOUSING

Children's Services
4C's rebate - joint commissioning of children's placements 35 Realignment of budget with no public impact Nil
Review of admin support 186 Details to be confirmed but could be back office restructure with little or no public impact Low
Review of Barnardo's contract 189 Potential reduction in Family Support Services Medium
Families First - deletion of admin post 23 Deletion of vacant back office post with no public impact Nil
Customer Services restructure 20 Back office restructure with no public impact Nil

Total Children's Services 453

Adult Services

Review of staffing budgets in Adult Services
550 Details to be confirmed but could be back office restructure with little or no public impact Low

Review of non Residential Charging Policy

100

Propose changes to the current non residential charging policy to ensure equity for all service 
users to include: charging for support element of domiciliary care, charging for day opportunities 
in a community setting, and charging for day opportunities provided by the independent and third 
sector.

Low

Retender of Shared Care Respite Contract currently held by  Action 
for Children 50 Low

Review of Day Services to achieve a budget reduction of 6% 300 Low
Implications of Social Services & Wellbeing Act 2014 150 Low

Review of external day care 205 Low

Cap inflationary uplifts on external contracts
3 Minor reductions could be achieved through efficiencies within the provider organisation Nil

Domiciliary Care client income - budget realignment 25 Realignment of budget with no public impact Nil

Non renewal of Mental Health Carers Support contract 34 Full year effect of not renewing the  contract that ends on 31/03/19. Consultation currently 
ongoing Low

Income generation - Ty Hapus 25 Will offer  for use by other local authorities and ABUHB Nil
Cease contribution to SEWIC 15 Regional agreement has been reached to cease a back office function with no public impact Nil
Extra Care - budget realignment 20 Realignment of budget with no public impact Nil

Adult Services 1,477

Service Strategy and Business Support

Dissolution of South East Wales IT Consortium 22 Full year effect of termination of a regional arrangement for back office IT Support in 2018/19. 
This support is now provided through the Regional WCCIS Service. Nil

5% efficiency target for Office Expenses 9 Back Office efficiencies Nil

Total Service Strategy and Business Support 31

Housing Services
Private Housing - staffing restructure 34 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Removal of Homeless Prevention Fund budget - to be funded 
through growth in RSG 46 Nil effect Nil
Revise staff apportionments between General Fund and HRA 50 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Llamau grant reduction 3 Reduced service already being provided Nil

Total Housing Services 133

Total Social Services & Housing 2,094

All of these savings could be achieved through a re-design of services including closure of a day 
base Twyn Carn) with little impact on service users. E.g. Service users could receive a similar 
service but in a different location. Promotion of independence to enable people to meet their own 
outcomes.

Page 17



Proposed Saving £000's Comments Public Impact

CORPORATE SERVICES

Corporate Finance
Housing Benefits - vacant post 27 Could increase performance if post filled Low
Environment Finance - vacant post 24 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Environment Finance - restructure 33 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Housing Benefits - New Burdens funding 42 Could increase performance if post filled Low
Additional grant and fees and charges income 67 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil

Total Corporate Finance 193

Procurement and Customer Services
Customer Services - management/team leader restructure 108 Front line service but no impact on service delivery due to revised working practices. Low
Customer Services - potential retirement 26 Front line service but no impact on service delivery due to revised working practices. Low

Total Procurement and Customer Services 134

Corporate Policy
Reduction in voluntary sector Service Level Agreements (SLAs) 42 Directly impact Voluntary Sector SLA payments. Medium

Reduction in Technical Assistance budget 5 Reduction in budget which is used to provide technical advice and guidance to Voluntary sector 
to allow them to access external grant programmes. Low

Reduction in Well-being budget 10 Reduction in budget used to support well-being activities. Low
Deletion of former Outcome Agreement budget 40 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Equalities Team - reduction in publicity and promotion budgets 4 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Reduction in Welsh Language Translation budget 10 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Cease the use of Ffynnon 12 New ways of working Nil
Service Review 67 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil

Total Corporate Policy 190

Information Technology
Staff restructure / workforce planning 150 Staffing Restructure Nil
Reduction in PSBA charges 132 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Reduction in telephony costs and line rentals 35 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Staffing restructure in Central Services 33 Vacant Posts Nil
Reduce to a single van (mailroom) 4 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Agenda distribution - cessation of delivery of papers to Members 5 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil

Total Information Technology 358

Human Resources and Communications
Human Resources - restructure 120 Vacant posts Nil

Total Human Resources and Communications 120

Health and Safety
Health & Safety - restructure 83 Vacant posts Nil

Total Health and Safety 83

MISCELLANEOUS FINANCE

Pension contributions former Authorities - budget realignment 50 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
External Audit fees - budget realignment 50 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Welsh language - budget realignment 53 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
NNDR on empty properties 131 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Rent Allowances, War Widow Concessions - budget realignment 10 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Reduction in Careline budget 20 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Reduction in Carbon Management Scheme budget 25 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
PV Panels income 15 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Class 1A NI Contributions (Tusker) 40 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil
Reduction in miscellaneous items budget 4 Budget Realignment / Vacancy Management Nil

Communities Match Funding Pot 15 Could impact on Communities to organise these 2 events. Community council/sponsorship 
funding would be needed to continue with the events. Low

Total MISCELLANEOUS FINANCE 413

Total Corporate Services and Miscellaneous Finance 1,491

Total 2019-20 Proposed Savings 11,298

Page 18



Appendix 3
2019-20 Temporary Savings Proposals

Proposed Saving £000's Comments Public Impact

EDUCATION & LIFELONG LEARNING

LMS Contingency - 23% Reduction 45

Current budget is £193k, this 
will reduce to £153k prior to 
this £45k proposed reduction. 
This leaves just £108k to deal 
with in year formula issues. 
Consequently if an issue 
arises will need to consider the 
use of LMS Contingency 
balances - subject to formal 
approval. 

Medium

TOTAL Education and Lifelong Learning 45

COMMUNITIES

Regeneration and Planning

Community Regeneration Community Projects - 53% Reduction 35

Impact on ability to fund small 
projects that do not have 
specific funding

Low

Business Grants - 50% Reduction 25
Reduced funding for 
Businesses. Low

Community Regeneration Fund - 100% Reduction 50

Impact on Voluntary 
Organisations. This is the 
remaining budget. 

Low

Total Regeneration and Planning 110

Infrastructure

Winter Maintenance - 54% Reduction 500
Alternative funding via winter 
maintenance reserve Nil

Public Rights of way -50% Reduction 31
Deterioration in Public Rights 
of Way Low

Maintenance of Land - 50 % Reduction 15
Deterioration in maintenance 
of land Low

Temporary reduction in Carriageway Resurfacing RCCO 110 Alternative funding sort WG Low
Temporary reduction in Carriageway Surface Dressing 800 Alternative funding sort WG Low
Temporary reduction in Structures Maintenance budget 40 Alternative funding sort WG Low
Temporary reduction in Highways Reactive Maintenance budget 43 Alternative funding sort WG Low
Temporary reduction in Risca Canal Maintenance budget 40 Reliant on capital project Low

Total Infrastructure 1,579

Community and Leisure Services

RCCO Waste Vehicles - 100% Reduction 390
Risk to vehicle 
availability/reliability Low

Total Community and Leisure Services 390

Corporate Property

Property Maintenanace - 20% Reduction 309
Reduced funding available for 
discretionary work. Low

Total Corporate Property 309

Total Communities 2,388

SOCIAL SERVICES & HOUSING

Reduce Growth provision 300

Would only meet existing need 
but does not allow for any 
demographic increases from 
August 2018 or for any fee 
increases in excess of 
inflation.

High

Total Social Services & Housing 300

CORPORATE SERVICES

Information Technology

PC Refresh -100% Reduction 129
Replacement PC and MFP 
capacity Budget £132k Nil

Total Information Technology 129

Miscelleneous Finance

Deferred Borrowing - 4.4% Reduction 500

Reduces opportunity to use as 
a one off underspend on 
capital schemes.

Low

Total MISCELLANEOUS FINANCE 500

Total Corporate Services and Miscellaneous Finance 629

Total 2019-20 Temporary Savings Proposals 3,362

Page 19



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 20



 
 

 

CABINET – 14TH NOVEMBER 2018 
 

SUBJECT: NOTICE OF MOTION – SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION 
STRATEGY (SARS) 2019-2029 

 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES  
 

 
1.1 The attached Notice of Motion was presented to the Regeneration and Environment Scrutiny 

Committee on 30th October 2018 by Councillor K. Etheridge, and requested that:- 
 

“We the undersigned elected members call on the Regeneration and Environment Scrutiny 
Committee to make a recommendation to Cabinet which we understand will be discussed on 
14th November 2018 that the whole strategy is referred to Full Council for debate and vote 
by all elected members in the interests of openness and transparency.  We acknowledge the 
strength of feeling and the campaign against the proposals to rationalise leisure centres, a 
campaign which has achieved cross party support, support of 2 former MPs and the current 
MP within the Islwyn Parliamentary Constituency. 
 
The ongoing petition currently contains 5000 signatures in respect of retaining sites at Cefn 
Fforest and Blackwood, and currently lists a number of signatures from the following wards; 
Argoed, Penmaen, Pengam, Aberbargoed, Pontllanfraith, Ynysddu, Blackwood, New 
Tredegar, Abercarn, Newbridge, Risca East, Maesycwmmer, Ystrad Mynach and Cefn 
Fforest. 
 
We ask the Committee to consider this motion and request should they agree to request that 
Cabinet refer the matter to Full Council”. 

 
1.2 The Scrutiny Committee considered the Notice of Motion and were advised that in relation to 

the decision-making process, the decision on whether or not to adopt the Sport and Active 
Recreation Strategy is an executive function of Cabinet, but Cabinet do have the discretion 
to refer such matters to Council. 

 
1.3 Following discussion on its contents, it was unanimously agreed that the Notice of Motion be 

supported, and that it be recommended to Cabinet that the Draft Sport and Active Recreation 
Strategy 2019-29 being considered on 14th November 2018 be referred to Council for 
approval. 

 
1.4 Cabinet are asked to note the attached Notice of Motion and consider the above 

recommendation from the Scrutiny Committee. 
 
  
Author:  R. Barrett, Committee Services Officer, Ext. 4245 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix Report to the Regeneration and Environment Scrutiny Committee on 30th October 

2018 - Agenda Item 8. 

Page 21

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 5



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 22



REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 
30TH OCTOBER 2018  

SUBJECT: NOTICE OF MOTION - SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 
(SARS) 2019-2029 

REPORT BY: INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITIES 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 The Scrutiny Committee is asked to consider the Notice of Motion as set out in Paragraph 4.1 
of the Report, and make an appropriate recommendation. 

2. SUMMARY

2.1 A Notice of Motion has been received from Councillor K. Etheridge and is supported by 
Councillors Mrs E.M. Aldworth, K. Dawson, A. Farina-Childs, R. Gough, S. Kent, G. Kirby, 
C.P. Mann, B. Owen and G. Simmonds. 

2.2 The Notice of Motion meets the criteria set out in the Council’s Constitution and in accordance 
with the Council’s Rules of Procedure is now referred to this Scrutiny Committee for 
consideration. 

3. LINKS TO STRATEGY

3.1 The procedural rules regarding a Notice of Motion are contained within the Council’s 
Constitution as adopted in May 2002.  The Council’s Constitution sets out the framework for 
the decision making roles and responsibilities which will impact on future generations. 

4. REPORT

4.1 Councillor Etheridge requests in his Notice of Motion that:- 

“We the undersigned elected members call on the Regeneration and Environment Scrutiny 
Committee to make a recommendation to Cabinet which we understand will be discussed on 
14th November 2018 that the whole strategy is referred to Full Council for debate and vote by 
all elected members in the interests of openness and transparency.  We acknowledge the 
strength of feeling and the campaign against the proposals to rationalise leisure centres, a 
campaign which has achieved cross party support, support of 2 former MPs and the current 
MP within the Islwyn Parliamentary Constituency. 

The ongoing petition currently contains 5000 signatures in respect of retaining sites at 
Cefn Forest and Blackwood, and currently lists a number of signatures from the following 
wards; Argoed, Penmaen, Pengam, Aberbargoed, Pontllanfraith, Ynysddu, Blackwood, 
New Tredegar, Abercarn, Newbridge, Risca East, Maesycwmmer, Ystrad Mynach and 
Cefn Forest.   

Page 23



 We ask the Committee to consider this motion and request should they agree to request that 
Cabinet refer the matter to Full Council”. 

 
4.2 The following information is provided in relation to the motion. 
 
4.3 The Committee should also note that the SARS will be the subject of a special meeting of the 

Regeneration and Environment Scrutiny Committee to be held on 8th November 2018, where 
the outcome of the consultation will be presented in order that the Committee can make a 
recommendation to Cabinet on adoption of the Strategy. 

 
4.4 The Cabinet is able to make the decision on whether the SARS is adopted. 
 
 
5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
5.1 The Notice of Motion is consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the act as it 

complies with the rules and regulations of the Council’s Constitution which sets out a clear 
framework for how the Council operates in particular decision making responsibilities which 
will consider the positive and negative impacts on future generations, long term resilience, 
economic, environmental and social capital. 

 
 
6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There are no specific equalities implications that directly affect the Council arising from the 

report. 
 
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
 
8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no personnel implications associated with this report. 
 
 
9. CONSULTATIONS 
 
9.1 There has been no consultation undertaken. 
 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 Members are asked to consider the Notice of Motion outlined in paragraph 4.1 above. 
 
 
11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATION 
 
11.1 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution. 
 
 
12. STATUTORY POWER 
 
12.1  Local Government Act 1972. 
 
 
Author: Mark S. Williams, Interim Corporate Director of Communities 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 Signed copy of Notice of Motion 

Page 24



APPENDIX 1

Page 25



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 26



 
 

 

 

CABINET – 14TH NOVEMBER 2018 
 

SUBJECT: DRAFT SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-29 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES  
 

 
1.1 The attached report is due to be considered by the Regeneration and Environment Scrutiny 

Committee on 8th November 2018, prior to its referral to Cabinet.   
 
1.2 The views expressed at the meeting and the recommendations of the Scrutiny Committee will 

be reported verbally to Cabinet on 14th November 2018. 
 
 
Author:  R. Barrett, Committee Services Officer, Ext. 4245 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix Report to the Regeneration and Environment Scrutiny Committee on 8th November 

2018 - Agenda Item 3 

Page 27

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 6



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 28



 

 

 

SPECIAL REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE - 8TH NOVEMBER 2018 

 

SUBJECT: DRAFT SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-29 
 

REPORT BY: INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR - COMMUNITIES 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To advise Scrutiny Committee of the outcome of the public consultation exercise and to seek 

Committee’s views on the updated draft Caerphilly Sport and Active Recreation Strategy 
2019-29 prior to presenting to Cabinet for consideration. 

 
 
2. SUMMARY  
 
2.1 At its meeting of 26th June 2018, Regeneration and Environment Scrutiny Committee 

recommended a draft Sport and Active Recreation Strategy 2019-29 to Cabinet.  The draft 
Strategy was approved by Cabinet for public consultation at their meeting of 27th June 2018.  
This report presents a draft strategy, amended following the consultation exercise, which set 
outs a future purpose and direction for the provision of sport and active recreation in 
Caerphilly County Borough - it establishes the key principles and vision which will inform 
future decisions and actions over the next 10 years.  For the purposes of the draft Strategy 
(Appendix 1) and this report sport and active recreation is defined as the range of sport and 
physical activity opportunities provided by Caerphilly County Borough Council in conjunction 
with our key partners. 

 
2.2 A ten week consultation period was undertaken to obtain the views of Caerphilly County 

Borough residents, existing users and a broad range of stakeholders.  Views were sought via 
a questionnaire and 11 drop-in sessions that were held across the county borough to provide 
the opportunity for one to one discussions with Officers.  711 responses were received to the 
consultation questionnaire with a further 20 written responses also being received.  

 
2.3 The full report of the consultation responses is available at www.caerphilly.gov.uk.  In 

summary, there was broad support for the draft Strategy’s Vision and proposed Actions to 
support the Vision.  Similarly, there was support for the 3 Key Outcomes supporting actions 
identified in the draft Strategy.  In the What Needs to be Done section of the draft Strategy 
there was both agreement and disagreement with the actions identified and these are 
considered in more detail in the report.  This report presents the issues raised through the 
consultation and the Committee’s views are sought on an amended draft Strategy at Appendix 
1 prior to presentation to Cabinet for approval and adoption.  

 
2.4 An important factor for Members to consider is the period of time (2019-2029) to be covered 

by the Strategy.  It is therefore important to remember that any decisions arising from the 
Strategy (if adopted) will be taken over the 10 year period and will be the subject of specific 
reports to Cabinet. 

 
 

Page 29

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/


3. LINKS TO STRATEGY 
 
3.1 The draft Sport and Active Recreation Strategy 2019-29 supports the following Wellbeing 

Objectives within the Council’s Corporate Plan 2018-23: 
 

 Improve education opportunities for all; 

 Creating a county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle in accordance with the 
sustainable development principle within the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015; 

 Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-being. 
 
3.2 The draft Strategy also supports the Wellbeing Objectives within the Caerphilly Public 

Services Board’s Wellbeing Plan, ‘The Caerphilly We Want’: 
 

 Positive Change – A shared commitment to improving the way we work together 

 Positive Start – Giving our future generations the best start in life 

 Positive People – Empowering and enabling all our residents to achieve their own 
potential 

 Positive Places – Enabling our communities to be resilient and sustainable 
 
3.3 The draft Strategy will also contribute to the draft Regeneration Strategy for Caerphilly County 

Borough, ‘A Foundation for Success 2018-2023’. 
 
3.4 The Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act 2015 is about improving the social, 

economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing of Wales.  It requires public bodies to think 
more about the long-term, working with people and communities, looking to prevent problems 
and take a more joined up approach.  This will create a Wales that we all want to live in, now 
and in the future.  The Act puts in place seven well-being goals:  

 

 A prosperous Wales. 

 A resilient Wales. 

 A healthier Wales. 

 A more equal Wales. 

 A Wales of cohesive communities. 

 A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language. 

 A globally responsible Wales. 
 
 The content of this report supports:  A resilient Wales, A healthier Wales, A Wales of cohesive 

communities, A globally responsible Wales, A more equal Wales. 
 
3.5 Through this Strategy Caerphilly County Borough Council will also contribute to Sport Wales’ 

Community Sport outcomes namely: 
 

 Generating increased frequencies of regular participation; 

 Targeting inequalities and barriers to participation; 

 Providing high quality opportunities allowing our most talented athletes to realise their 
potential.   

 
 
4. THE REPORT 
 
4.1 At its meeting of 26th June 2018, Regeneration and Environment Scrutiny Committee 

recommended a draft Sport and Active Recreation Strategy 2019-29 to Cabinet.  The draft 
Strategy was approved by Cabinet for public consultation at their meeting of 27th June 2018.  
Following a Members’ Seminar on 9th July 2018 the draft Caerphilly Sport and Active 
Recreation Strategy was the subject of a ten week consultation exercise between 16th July 
2018 and 21st September 2018. 

 

Page 30



4.2 711 completed surveys were returned by the closing date, with 20 further written responses 
also received.  Of those who responded to the survey: 

 

 94% indicated that they were a resident of the county borough 

 12% work within the county borough 

 8% represented a local sport club or organisation 

 3% indicated that they were a local business person and a further 3% were elected 
members 

 50% were Leisure Lifestyle members 

 51% were male and 49% were female 

 68% indicated that they normally travel to the place where they take part in sport and 
active recreation by car, 23% walk, 4% cycle 4% use public transport. 

 
4.3 Respondents were asked to indicate which facilities they had accessed to take part in sport 

and active recreation within Caerphilly county borough at least once a month during the last 
12 months.  The results indicate that leisure centres had been used by the highest proportion 
of respondents (68%) in the last year.  A significant number had also visited country parks 
(57%) and parks and children’s play areas (44%) at least once a month in the last 12 months.  
The leisure centres used most often by respondents were Pontllanfraith, Newbridge, Cefn 
Fforest and Caerphilly.  The country parks used most often by respondents were Parc 
Penallta and Penyfan Pond.  The parks and children’s play areas used most often by 
respondents were Ystrad Mynach, Morgan Jones and Blackwood Showfield. 

 
4.4 85% agreed with the Vision to encourage healthy lifestyles and support our residents to be 

more active, more often.  In respect of the Actions underpinning that Vision 75% agreed that 
encouraging a collective responsibility will enable the council to best deliver its vision for the 
county borough.  44% agreed with supporting others and only directly providing where the 
need is great and no others have the expertise or capacity to.  Whilst 37 % disagreed, a 
further 19% indicated that they “didn’t know” in relation to this approach 

 
4.5 The draft Strategy identified 3 Outcomes:  
 

 96% agreed that “better health” should be a key outcome of the strategy; 

 91% agreed that “healthier and prosperous communities” should be a key outcome; 

 70% agreed that “a more efficient and sustainable future provision” should be a key 
outcome. 

 
 41% felt that there were outcomes missing and these are considered further in the Report of 

Consultation at  Appendix 2. 
 
4.6 There was strong agreement with the actions identified under the “better health” outcome: 
 

 97% agreed that our future generations should be inspired to adopt healthy active 
lifestyles 

 96% agreed that the council should support and encourage the provision of more 
opportunities for more daily active recreation in our communities and work places;  

 84% agreed with the provision of specialist interventions e.g. exercise referral, outreach 
work using physical activity. 

 
4.7 There was agreement with the actions outlined under the “healthier and prosperous 

communities” outcome: 
 

 88% agreed that working with community sports clubs and their governing bodies to help 
our clubs become bigger and stronger 

 60% agree with reviewing the commercial business case and options for a new or 
improved leisure attraction in the south west of the county borough (17% don’t know). 

Page 31



 
4.8 There was also agreement with the actions identified under the outcome “a more efficient and 

financially sustainable future provision”: 
 

 94% agree with maximising the use of all our community amenities and the local 
environment 

 54% agree with maximising use of assets through co-locations, invest to save models and 
aim to reduce subsidy levels at our strategic leisure centres to between £1 and £1.20 per 
user (16% don’t know)   

 74% agree with creating more sustainable facilities by improving schools use agreements 
and investment in more attractive strategic facilities 

 63% agree with focussing our unique and essential role on providing specialist 
interventions in communities (20% don’t know) 

 87% agree with motivating young people - commissioning and supporting our schools to 
provide the right learning environment that is also available for community activity at 
appropriate times 

 70% agree that where there is a business case, we will invest in key, strategic facilities 
(17% don’t know) 

 89% agreed that the council should ensure that strategic facilities directly operated by us 
receive the level of regular investment required to ensure that equipment and facilities are 
safe, functional, modern and inspirational. 

 
4.9 In the What Needs to be Done section of the draft Strategy there was agreement with all the 

actions detailed under Corporate Policy with one exception:  
 

 97% agreed Sport and active recreation makes a significant contribution to achieve 
healthy lifestyles, education, economy and regeneration across the County borough. 

 58% disagreed that it is no longer feasible for the Council to provide the ‘same service for 
all’ whilst only 25% agreed with this statement and a further 17% indicated that they “don’t 
know”. 

 89% agreed that the Council should work with others to make the best use of all available 
opportunities, facilities, funding and people. 

 92% agreed that the Council should make better and more innovative use of the widest 
possible range of indoor and outdoor physical activity spaces across all communities. 

 77% agreed that the Council should follow a joint sport and active recreation and schools 
strategy to include a new robust joint use agreement with schools. 

 
4.10 In relation to the Facilities section of the draft Strategy: 
 

 58% agreed with adopting the Welsh Government and Sport Wales Facilities Blueprint for 
Sport and Active Recreation. 

 50% agreed with adopting a decision making matrix for determining the provision of 
strategic Leisure facilities that are directly managed by the Sport and Leisure Service.  
17% disagreed and 33% said they “don’t know”. 

 69% agreed that the Council should seek clarity on the future swimming entitlement along 
with supporting the rationale for a sustainable programme of aquatic delivery also 
informing the need for future aquatic facilities. 

 90% agreed that the Council should develop a plan to enhance and maximise the impact 
of outdoor spaces, playing fields, parks and informal recreational spaces. 

 81% agreed with maximising the use of 3G facilities for school, community and weekend 
competitive use alongside the grass pitch network. 

 52% felt the impact of rationalising leisure facilities would be negative.  
 
4.11 There was strong agreement that outreach intervention programmes should continue: 
 

 95% agreed that the Council should continue to collaborate with schools to motivate 
children and young people to adopt and continue healthy active lifestyles. 

Page 32



 95% agreed that the Council should continue to provide targeted support to help keep 
older people involved and active in local communities. 

 88% agreed that the Council should continue to encourage and support federations of 
clubs sharing resources. 

 81% agreed that the Council should continue to provide specialist interventions to reach 
targeted audiences where there is evidence of need and no other alternative provider. 

 82% agreed that the Council should continue to lead the regional Active Gwent 
collaboration programme to increase participation in sport and physical activity in a way 
that has the greatest impact in Caerphilly. 

 
4.12 After the public consultation on the draft Sport and Active Recreation Strategy a petition was 

presented at Council on 9th October 2018 by Councillor Kevin Etheridge with 5343 signatories 
to: Action against possible closure of Cefn Fforest and Pontllanfraith Leisure Centre.  

 
4.13 The consultation results provide broad support for the draft Strategy and its 10 year Vision, 

the Key Outcomes within it, and the proposed actions that underpin it.  As indicated in 4.3 
above a high proportion of respondents are regular users of leisure centres.  52% of 
respondents felt that rationalising leisure centres would have a negative impact.  The potential 
for some negative impacts on some groups should facilities close has been recognised as 
detailed in the Equalities Impact Assessment attached at Appendix 3 and steps will be taken 
to mitigate those.  As well as the petition referenced in the preceding paragraph a number of 
responses to the public consultation specifically referenced concerns around the potential 
closure of two facilities, Pontllanfraith Leisure Centre and Cefn Fforest Leisure Centre.  
Clearly there is a body of respondents who have focussed on these two facilities which has 
not played out across the rest of the county borough in relation to other facilities.  The Sport 
and Active Recreation Strategy sets out a long term, countywide approach and as mentioned 
there is broad support for that. 

 
4.14 The draft Strategy proposes adoption of the Welsh Government and Sport Wales ‘Facilities for 

Future Generations’ blueprint for Sport and Active Recreation together with a decision making 
matrix for determining the provision of strategic leisure facilities that are directly managed by 
the Sport and Leisure Service.  This means that over the 10 year life of the Strategy the 
Council intends to invest in 4 high class strategic multi-functional facilities, meaning that some 
other sites may close or be managed by others.  During the course of the consultation an 
expression of interest was received from a third party interested in taking over the 
management of Cefn Fforest Leisure Centre.  The Council is acutely aware of concerns 
regarding any potential loss of facilities and will give careful consideration to opportunities for 
alternative provision before any facilities are withdrawn.  Decisions on each will the subject of 
separate reports and a specific decision making process as the Authority evolves to the new 
model of provision over the lifetime of the Strategy. 

 
4.15    The draft Sport and Active Recreation Strategy 2019-29 sets out a future purpose and 

direction for the provision of sport and active recreation in Caerphilly County Borough - it 
establishes the key principles and vision which will inform future decisions and actions over 
the next 10 years.  For the purposes of the draft Strategy (Appendix 1) and this report sport 
and active recreation is defined as the range of sport and physical activity opportunities 
provided by Caerphilly County Borough Council in conjunction with our key partners. 

 
4.16 The benefits of leading a physically active lifestyle for our residents are well documented and, 

acknowledging the current financial climate within which local authorities operate, a clear 
strategic direction is essential.  The draft Strategy recognises the multiple challenges of poor 
levels of health, particularly in certain areas of the County; reducing budgets; the large 
number of facilities across the County and the deteriorating quality of our older buildings; and 
increasing population and consumer demand.  The Council does not have a statutory 
responsibility to provide most of our current sport and active recreation services.  This 
discretionary provision, the maintenance of our facilities and services, has to be measured 
against their positive impact on our corporate priorities of health, regeneration, education, and 
future affordability.  

 

Page 33



4.17 The support for the draft Strategy received through the consultation is welcomed.  The draft 
Strategy at Appendix 1 has been the subject of minor amendments in the light of the 
responses and feedback received through the course of the consultation process.  More 
significant amendments have been made as a result of specific representations received and 
more detail on these is provided in the Report of Consultation at Appendix 2; in summary, 
after their consideration, the following changes have been made: 

 

 Text added to confirm that wellbeing includes physical and mental health. 

 Text added to confirm that careful consideration will be given to opportunities for 
alternative provision before any facilities are withdrawn.   

 Additional text to confirm the linkages to the Caerphilly Public Services Boards Wellbeing 
Plan, The Caerphilly We Want, across a number of the Wellbeing Plan Action Areas. 

 Action added to the Healthier and Prosperous Communities Outcome in relation to pre-
school activity. 

 Text added to recognise the opportunity to link delivery of this Strategy with the proposed 
Green Infrastructure Strategy.  

 Reference to Active Travel expanded to strengthen the linkages and highlight the 
significant infrastructure that exists across the county borough. 

 
 
5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
5.1 The issues outlined in this report make a contribution across the seven well-being goals, but 

in particular to the following areas: 
 

1. A healthier Wales:  There is significant evidence to support the view that undertaking an 
active lifestyle has significant benefits in terms of reducing the risk of cardiovascular 
disease along with positive impacts upon mental health and body weight control.  The role 
of community centres is significant in terms of supporting the integration of physical 
activity into everyday lifestyles. 
 

2. A prosperous Wales:  There is significant evidence of the essential role that sport and 
physical activity plays in regenerating communities, raising aspirations and making them a 
more attractive place to live, work and visit. 

 
3. A Wales of cohesive communities:  Caerphilly County Borough Council has 

communicated a vision to place its facilities at the heart of the community, ensuring it is 
effectively placed to deliver a well-connected, socially inclusive hub. 
 

4. A globally responsible Wales:  There is significant evidence to support the positive 
impact that leading a healthy, physically active lifestyle has upon the economic, social and 
cultural well-being of Welsh residents. 
 

5. A more equal Wales:  There is significant evidence to support the positive role that 
engaging in community activity can play in supporting people to fulfil their potential from 
both an educational and socio economic perspective. 

 
5.2 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 sets out the sustainable development 

principle against which all public bodies in Wales should assess their decision-making.  The 
aim of the legislation is to ensure the well-being of future generations through maximising the 
contribution public bodies make towards the well-being goals.  In using the sustainable 
development principle it is incumbent that the authority considers the whole of the population 
it serves and considers the effect of its actions on future generations.  The principle, also 
known as the five ways of working is assessed as follows: 

 

 LONG TERM - The existing Sport and Leisure Services estate across the whole of the 
authority is not sustainable in the long term due to cuts in the revenue available to the 
local authority.  Securing the provision of sport and active recreation services now and in 
the future requires that difficult decisions have to be made that balance short term 

Page 34



considerations against long term sustainability.  The current financial climate means that it 
is not possible to continue subsidising all existing provision and so decisions must be 
taken now to secure a sustainable sports and leisure service for future generations.   

 

 INVOLVEMENT - An extensive consultation was undertaken with a broad range of 
stakeholders.  Inevitably residents will wish to see as many local authority services as 
close to their homes as possible, and this view would be held by all communities within the 
county borough.  

 

 PREVENTION - The promotion of health and well-being now, prevents need in the future 
and reduces demand on public services.  In preparing the proposed vision and strategic 
direction we have sought to maintain sports and leisure services accessibility for the 
community as far as is practicable and affordable.  

 

 COLLABORATION - Sport and Leisure Services currently collaborates with a range of 
partners both locally and regionally to develop services that support increased opportunity 
and engagement.  

 

 INTEGRATION - Sport and Leisure Services have considered how the proposed vision 
and strategic direction may impact on the well-being goals and in so doing have been 
mindful of the requirement to provide a holistic sports and leisure offer that is still 
accessible across the county borough utilising all available resources. 

 
 
6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has been prepared at this consultation stage in 

accordance with the Authority’s Strategic Equality Plan 2016-2020 and is included at 
Appendix 3.  The potential for some negative impacts has been identified associated with 
mobility issues for some groups with protected characteristics should some leisure facilities 
close.  However, the proposal to focus on 4 strategic leisure facilities accessible by public 
transport will ensure, so far as reasonably practicable, geographic coverage across the county 
borough.  There is no statutory requirement for the Council to provide these facilities and this 
represents a fair and just allocation of resources that will deliver continued sport and leisure 
provision into the future for the benefit of all.  The new model of service delivery will evolve 
over the 10 year lifetime of the Strategy and careful consideration will be given to 
opportunities for alternative provision before any facilities are withdrawn.   

 
6.2 Actions are proposed to mitigate some potential negative impacts that have been identified 

and these potential impacts are outweighed by the overall benefits of ensuring sustainable 
sport and active recreation provision across the county borough.  The consultation exercise 
has been used to strengthen our understanding of any potential positive or negative impacts 
and the Equality Impact Assessment has been revised as a result. 

 
6.3 The proposal supports Strategic Equality Objective 3: Improving Physical Access, Strategic 

Equality Objective 5: Inclusive Engagement and Participation, Strategic Equality Objective 6: 
Compliance with the Welsh Language Standards, and Strategic Equality Objective 7: 
Supporting Age-friendly Communities. 

 
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no financial implications at this stage.  Should the Strategy be formally adopted 

then proposed actions will be the subject of separate reports over the 10 year course of the 
Strategy that will include detailed financial implications.  Any decisions will be dependent on 
the availability of funding and the approval of a robust business case. 

 
7.2 The cost of delivering the services identified within the draft Strategy are set out in greater 

detail in the document, however the table below provides an overview of the net cost of each: 

Page 35



 

Service Area Net cost 

Leisure Centres 
 
Community Centres 

£1,928,047 (inc £213,300 Free Swim 
Initiative grant) 
£358,855 

Property Services – Statutory Maintenance at 
Leisure Centres 

£20,000 in 2017/18 

Sports Development 
 

 Caerphilly Adventures 

 National Exercise Referral 

 Sports Development  

 
 

£143,091 
£174,677 (Grant Funded) 
£430,200 (Grant Funded) 

Central Leisure Costs £666,034 

Outdoor and Green Spaces £4,458,662 
 

 It should be noted that the above reflects current budgets which will need to reduce as a 
consequence of the ongoing public sector austerity.  

 

7.3 It is noted that the largest investment by the authority is the built infrastructure, in particular 
the network of leisure centres.  The majority of facilities as stated earlier were built in the late 
1960s/early 1970s.  Buildings of this age are traditionally not energy efficient, despite 
investments in various Local Authority Energy Finance projects and are also subject to a 
significant outstanding maintenance liability. 

 

7.4 The last service wide condition surveys undertaken on the leisure centre portfolio was in 2012 
which identified circa £3 million of category 1, 2 and 3 requirements.  Whilst there has been 
investment in addressing, particularly category 1 aspects, it should be noted that it is likely this 
cost pressure will increase upon completion of updated condition surveys.  There is currently 
no budget or capital set aside for the £3 million backlog. In 2013/2014, £395,000 of Leisure 
Centre revenue budget was transferred to Property Services for building maintenance and 
there is a potential saving if the condition of the stock could be improved.  There is the 
potential for capital receipts if rationalisation of facilities is adopted, which would generate 
funds that could be reinvested in sport and active recreation. 

 

7.5 A key aspiration of the draft Strategy is the requirement to address the position in respect of 
Caerphilly Leisure Centre.  It has been clearly identified that the south west of the county 
borough will experience a significant population growth over the strategy timeline.  This 
growth provides an opportunity to develop a Level 3 style facility that supports the authority’s 
aim of Caerphilly as a tourist destination. 

 

7.6 Proposals developed by Sport and Leisure Services in partnership with Alliance Leisure in 
2017 identified four options to address Caerphilly Leisure Centre, namely:- 

 

1. Do nothing and continue to subsidise at present values 
2. Refurbishment Option 1 – Circa £5.188m 
3. Refurbishment Option 2 – Circa £8.915m 
4. New Build Option           – Circa £13-15m 

 

 However, it should be noted these costs would be subject to construction industry inflation 
given that they are some 12 months old.  Any decision to progress refurbishment or new build 
would be dependent on the availability of funding and the approval of a robust business case. 

 

7.7 The Strategy also identifies the need for a capital budget (of circa £200k per annum) for 
replacement of key equipment at the directly managed strategic sites. 

 
 

8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 

8.1 There are no personnel implications at this stage; however should the strategy be formally 
adopted then due consideration will be required to establish future resource requirements. 

Page 36



9. CONSULTATION 
 
9.1 The draft Sport and Active Recreation Strategy was promoted and to launch the consultation 

a 2 minute video was produced.  The video explained the key points of the strategy as well as 
identifying current financial challenges.  135,809 individuals were reached via social media 
with 7,242 likes, shares and comments and 250 consultation link clicks.  The draft Strategy 
was subject to the following consultation process: 

 

TIMESCALES ACTIVITY 

9th July Pre consultation - Members Seminar  

Friday 16th July – 
21st September 
2018 

10 week public and stakeholder consultation period 

Mid June Newsline signposting to consultation 

At outset of 
consultation period 
and follow up 

NewsOnline Promotion 

At outset of 
consultation period 
and follow up 

Press activity + social media – Facebook and Twitter 

For 10 week 
consultation period 

Website – banner on front page 
Online survey (SNAP).   

For 10 week 
consultation period 

Posters in public facing Council venues and paper versions of survey 
available from leisure centres, main public facing council buildings and 
other venues impacted – community centres, country parks and 
schools 

During 10 week 
consultation period 

Surgery/drop in sessions to be held at key locations across the 
borough - promoted using above tools 

At outset of 10 week 
consultation period 

 Direct correspondence with groups as outlined in the 
Consultation and Monitoring Guidance document covering 
protected characteristics.  This may be via e-mail or letter or 
face to face with groups as appropriate 

 Age  

 Youth forum  

 50+ forum  

 Age Cymru 

 Disability  

 Deafblind.org,  

 RNIB Cymru,  

 Action Hearing Loss Cymru,  

 BDA,  

 Disability Can Do,  

 Caerphilly County Borough Access Group,  

 Caerphilly People First,  

 Disability Sports Wales,  

 Caerphilly Borough Mind 

 Pregnancy and Maternity – general consultation 

 Race 

 Gwent Education Multi-Ethnic Service (GEMS)   

 Race Equality Council,  

 SEWREC 

 Religion or Belief – general consultation 
 Sex – general consultation 
 Sexual orientation and gender reassignment 

Page 37



 Umbrella Cymru  

 LGBTQ+ youth group,  

 Stonewall Cymru 

 Language  

 Menter Iaith,  

 Welsh Language Forum  

At outset of 10 week 
consultation period 

Direct correspondence with: 
 All smart card users (for leisure centres) 
 Sports and clubs across the county borough 
 All groups who use leisure facilities for any other activities 
 Community centre secretaries and all groups who use 

community centres currently 
 All groups who use tourism venues for active recreation.  

At outset of 10 week 
consultation period 

Direct correspondence with: 
 All local Councillors 
 All town and community councils 
 WLGA 
 Dragons Rugby 
 Coleg-y-Cymoedd  
 Future Generations Commissioner 
 Older People’s Commissioner 
 Children’s Commissioner 
 Welsh Language Commissioner 
 Equalities and Human Rights Commission 
 Local Assembly Members 
 Local Members of Parliament 
 Partner organisations through the Public Services Board and 

Standing Conference members 
 Voluntary sector through GAVO  
 All schools via head teachers 
 Further and Higher Education Colleges 
 Business forum  
 All private sector leisure providers within the county borough 
 Neighbouring local authorities whose provision may be 

impacted 
 Welsh Athletics 
 Sport Wales 

 
9.2 711 responses were received to the consultation questionnaire with a further 20 written 

responses also being received.  The full report of the consultation responses is available at 
www.caerphilly.gov.uk. 

 
9.3 This report has been sent to the consultees listed below and all comments received are 

reflected in this report. 
 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 That Scrutiny Committee consider the public consultation responses and make any 

recommendations on the updated draft Sport and Active Recreation Strategy 2019-29 prior to 
presentation to Cabinet for consideration. 

 
 
11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
11.1 To set out to all stakeholders the strategic vision for the delivery of sport and active recreation 

services within the county borough. 

Page 38



12. STATUTORY POWER  
 
12.1 Local Government Act 1972. 
 
 
Author: Rob Hartshorn, Head of Policy and Public Protection  
Consultees: Mark S. Williams, Interim Corporate Director, Communities 

Cllr Nigel George, Cabinet Member for Neighbourhood Services 
Jeff Reynolds, Sport & Leisure Services Facilities Manager 
Jared Lougher, Sport & Leisure Services Development Manager 
Mike Headington, Green Spaces and Transport Services Manager 
Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer (Equalities & Welsh Language) 
Mike Eedy, Finance Manager 

 Shaun Watkins, HR Manager 
Sue Richards, Head of Service, Education, Planning and Strategy 

 Nicole Scammell, Head of Corporate Finance 
 Steve Harris, Interim Head of Business Improvement Services 
 Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer 
 Liz Sharma, Research Officer  
 
Background Papers: ‘Strategic Review of Leisure Facilities’ report to Regeneration & Environment 
Scrutiny Committee 28th October 2014. 
‘Review of Existing Formal Recreation and Leisure Facilities’ report to Cabinet 17th June 2015 
Wales Audit Office Report ‘Review of the development of a sport and leisure strategy – Caerphilly 
County Borough Council’ May 2016. 
‘Draft Sport and Active Recreation Strategy 2019-29’ report to Regeneration & Environment Scrutiny 
Committee 26th June and Cabinet 27th June 2018. 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix1: Draft Sport and Active Recreation Strategy 2019-2029 
Appendix 2: Report of Consultation 
Appendix 3: Equality Impact Assessment 
 

Page 39



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 40



Man gwyrddach ar gyfer chwaraeon a dull byw gweithredol
A greener place for sport and active lifestyles

SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION 
STRATEGY 2019-202920

19-
20
29

Caerphilly County Borough CouncilAPPENDIX 1

P
age 41



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

1

INTRODUCTION	 2

STRATEGY PURPOSE, PRINCIPLES AND PRIORITIES	 5

A REVIEW OF WHAT WE KNOW - INFORMING FUTURE DECISIONS	 15

MAJOR CHALLENGES TO BE OVERCOME	 23

WHAT NEEDS TO BE DONE	 31

CONTENTS

P
age 42



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

2

INTRODUCTION
INTRODUCING THIS STRATEGY AND ITS INTENDED PURPOSE

●● This strategy sets out a future purpose and direction for the provision of sport and active recreation in Caerphilly 
County Borough - it establishes the key principles and vision which will inform future decisions and actions.

●● Where necessary, as and when required, the strategy implementation will be supported by more detailed 
communications, consultation, and business cases for action to support reports to the relevant Scrutiny 
Committee, Cabinet and/or Full Council.

WHAT IS SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION?

The definition of Sport and Active Recreation in relation to this strategy is based on the range of sport and physical 
activity opportunities provided by Caerphilly County Borough Council in conjunction with our key partners: 

THE RATIONALE FOR THE STRATEGY

●● ‘Caerphilly County Borough Council has embarked on an exciting and challenging journey of improvement and 
change’ The Corporate Plan (2018-2023).

●● ‘Rising to the future challenges it is clear that we will need to do things differently - be innovative and willing to 
adapt and respond to change’.

●● To be successful, the Council must fundamentally redefine its unique role i.e. what we do, the services we provide, 
and how we provide them.

●● No longer can we do what we have always done - our future role will be less about directly delivering services 
and more about enabling the many other organisations who already provide excellent opportunities across our 
communities.

To be successful, 
the Council must 
fundamentally 
redefine its unique 
role i.e. what we 
do, the services we 
provide, and how 
we provide them.

P
age 43



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

3

IMPLEMENTING THE WELLBEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 

●● We will need to be bold - not holding on to what we have done in the past, but looking forward to ensure that the 
decisions we make and opportunities we provide are fit for future generations - responding to the emerging needs 
of our young people, the adults of tomorrow, and of course looking after the different needs of a growing older 
population. 

●● We must also make sure what we provide is going to be sustainable i.e. we can all afford to maintain service 
provision into the future.

●● Future approaches will demand that people take greater responsibility for their own health and levels of physical 
activity. It is the role of the Council to support them to do this for themselves.

●● To deliver a ‘change agenda’ the Council will also have to make a number of critical decisions. It is vital therefore, 
that this strategy provides a clear rationale and priorities for action. It must provide a vision for where we are going 
and how we are going to get there, so that everyone understands what we can achieve, what to expect of us, as 
well as the roles that others have to play. 

●● Finally, the strategy is not focused just on buildings but the activity that can take place in a wide variety of different 
places found throughout our County Borough and as a result of many different opportunities provided by a range 
of organisations. 

Future approaches 
will demand that 
people take greater 
responsibility for 
their own health 
and levels of 
physical activity.

P
age 44



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

4

THE FORMAT

In developing this strategy we have set out:

1.	 What we have to achieve, our core purpose i.e. the better health and wellbeing priorities set out in our Corporate Plan (2018-2023). 

2.	 A review of:

a.	 Our communities and their needs - what we know about our population, the place we live, current provision;

b.	 Lessons learnt from our achievements, building on what we do well, taking account of the views of others;

c.	 What we know about future needs and emerging trends. 

3.	 The major challenges:

a.	 Poor levels of health particularly in certain areas of the county; 

b.	 Reducing budgets; 

c.	 The large number of facilities across the County and the deteriorating quality of our older 
buildings; 

d.	 Increasing population and consumer demand.

4.	 The actions - what needs to be done. 

P
age 45



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

5

STRATEGY PURPOSE, 
PRINCIPLES, AND PRIORITIES 
OUR VISION AND HOW WE WILL DELIVER IT

●● ‘Our vision for sport and active recreation is to encourage healthy lifestyles and support our residents to be more 
active, more often’.

●● We will do this by encouraging a collective responsibility and approach to provide and promote appropriate 
opportunities across a wide range of organisations. 

●● We will support others and only directly provide where the need is clearly identified and no others have the 
expertise or capacity to:

••Promote positive messages about health and physical activity; 

••Encourage physical activity through the provision of varied, attractive and accessible opportunities;

••Achieve raised standards of performance and celebrate local success in sport. 

‘Our vision for 
sport and active 
recreation is 
to encourage 
healthy lifestyles 
and support our 
residents to be 
more active, more 
often’.

P
age 46



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

6

OUR COMMUNITY & LEISURE SERVICE’S ROLE

●● Within Caerphilly County Borough Council our Community & Leisure Service is responsible for leading the 
promotion of sport and active recreation. Currently the Service looks after a wide range of active recreation 
activities and places including children’s play areas; country parks and open spaces; sports pitches; and 
leisure centres - usually on Secondary School sites. It also manages Outdoor Adventure Activities and Sports 
Development - including services ranging from GP exercise referrals to support for sport. 

●● The Service will ensure it is able to focus on leading and coordinating the future delivery of this Strategy.

The Service will 
ensure it is able to 
focus on leading 
and coordinating 
the future delivery 
of this Strategy.

P
age 47



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

7

HELPING DELIVER SPORT WALES’ GOALS 

●● Through this Strategy, Caerphilly County Borough Council will also contribute to Sport Wales’s 
Community Sport outcomes namely:

••Generating increased frequencies of regular participation;

••Targeting inequalities and barriers to participation;

••Providing high quality opportunities allowing our most talented athletes to realise their potential. 

ENSURING THE WELLBEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 

●● This strategy is designed to help deliver the goals and principles set out in the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015. The Act has put into law 7 Wellbeing Goals for a prosperous; resilient; 
healthier; more equal and globally responsible Wales; with cohesive communities; a vibrant culture and 
thriving Welsh language. 

P
age 48



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

8

●● There are clear opportunities for collaboration between this Strategy and the Caerphilly Public Services Board’s Well-being Plan, 
The Caerphilly We Want. Our semi-rural environment is a significant asset, the Well-being Plan aims to increase the contribution 
our environment makes to health and well-being though the provision of good quality accessible green space. The Well-being 
Plan also aims to help residents manage their own physical and mental well-being by creating supportive environments to do this. 
Working in partnership with the rest of the public sector is intrinsically linked to how we will deliver sport and active recreation

●● Fundamentally, the Act requires ‘responsible and sustainable decision making’ - that Caerphilly County  
Borough Council considers the longer-term impact of the decisions it makes.

●● Future decisions made by the Council will need to ensure sustainable developments to deliver wellbeing by:

••Focussing on securing the sustainability of provision to meet the longer term needs of future generations - not  
based upon the past;

••Understanding the root cause of issues to prevent problems from occurring;

•• Involving/considering the diversity of our population and communities in decisions that affect them; 

••Working more with others to secure future provision and sustainable solutions. 

Future decisions 
made by the 
Council will need to 
ensure sustainable 
developments to 
deliver wellbeing...

P
age 49



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

9

SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION IS NOT A STATUTORY ‘REQUIREMENT’

●● Caerphilly County Borough Council does not have to provide most of our current sport and active recreation 
services - it is not a statutory responsibility. So the case for this discretionary provision - the maintenance of our 
facilities and services, has to be measured against their positive impact on our corporate priorities of health, 
regeneration, education, and future affordability.

●● This strategy is therefore designed to provide a vision and rationale for the future that is directly linked to the 
Council’s Wellbeing Objectives, its strategic priorities, as set out in the Corporate Plan (2018-2023). 

This strategy 
is designed to 
provide a vision 
and rationale for 
the future.

P
age 50



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

10

THE CORPORATE PRIORITIES FOR SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION

●● The main Wellbeing Objectives in the Corporate Plan that sport and active recreation contributes to are:

••Objective 1: Improving education opportunities for all and improving the learning environment;

••Objective 5: Creating a County Borough that supports a healthy lifestyle and reduces inequalities in health 
across the County Borough in accordance with the Sustainable Development Principle within the Wellbeing of 
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015;

••Objective 6: Supporting citizens to remain independent and improve their wellbeing - helping keep older people 
involved and active in their local communities. 

Corporate Objective 1: Improved learning attainment and environments

●● Not only does health and wellbeing positively contribute to higher educational attainment, healthier young people 
are more likely to become healthier adults.

●● We will work with our schools to support the provision of an inspirational sport and physical activity offer, fit for 
future generations and to encourage a commitment to active lifestyle habits leading to our young people growing 
up to become more active adults.

●● In the first phase of our 21st Century Schools Programme (2014-2019) over £56m has been invested in schools 
to improve facilities, (including the new Islwyn High School to replace Pontllanfraith and Oakdale Comprehensive 
Schools and Y Gwindy Welsh Medium School) - this includes new sport and physical activity spaces which are 
available for community use. 

●● We will support and develop successful approaches to maximise community use of all school facilities. Whether 
our secondary school facilities are part of a Leisure Centre or not, we will expect and support them to ensure they 
are available for community use out of school hours. We will expect an equitable standard of service regardless of 
whether the community use is managed by the Community and Leisure Service or School.

Not only does 
health and 
wellbeing positively 
contribute to 
educational 
attainment, 
healthier young 
people are more 
likely to become 
healthier adults.

P
age 51



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

11

Corporate Objective 5: Creating a County Borough that supports a healthy lifestyle

●● To create a place that supports a healthy lifestyle, helping encourage people to become more physically active, 
reducing overweight and obesity rates in children.

●● To reduce inequalities in health across the County Borough:

••We will establish a supportive partnership with our schools, securing a commitment from the top (Head 
Teachers and Governors) and throughout the school, to engage and motivate all children to be physically active 
by choice;

••We will encourage physical activity within our communities in the most appropriate and effective ways through 
support that reaches out and works with others or through specific intervention programmes targeting 
communities - to create supportive, welcoming, attractive, easy to access activity opportunities;

••We will aim to increase the number of visits to all sport and active recreation places across the County Borough 
- whether they are community centres; primary/secondary schools; parks; the countryside; sports pitches or our 
strategic leisure centres. This will include targeted investment where there is a clear business case to improve 
the activity offer such that we respond to the greatest areas of need and demand and reach out to the largest 
numbers of new participants i.e. targeting known popular activities such as fitness, 5 a-side football, cycling, 
walking, jogging, dance activities etc.

Corporate Objective 6: Supporting citizens to remain independent and improve their wellbeing

●● Helping local community clubs and groups to engage ‘older adults’ in volunteering and supporting 
older people to lead independent, physically active and healthy lives - stimulating both mental 
wellbeing as well as maintaining appropriate levels of physical activity, bodily strength and mobility.

●● We will work with communities and local groups to support interventions that help keep older people 
active and involved in their local communities. 

We will work 
with communities 
and local groups 
to support 
interventions that 
help keep older 
people active and 
involved in their 
local communities.

P
age 52



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

12

SUMMARY STRATEGY PURPOSE 

Our First Key Outcome: Better Health 

●● We must achieve a healthier county - recognising that today’s unhealthy residents might be tomorrow’s customers 
for our health and social care services. Our long-term plan is to achieve healthier residents and communities 
although we recognise this will take more than a generation of change - over 20 years.

However due to serious financial constraints, we must also achieve a healthier Borough with less resources - so we 
will have to be ‘smart’ in the way we work. 

●● We will achieve our better health outcomes by:

•• Inspiring our future generations of children and young people to willingly choose to adopt healthy active lifestyles - this will 
be the biggest contribution to generational change;

••Supporting and encouraging the provision of more opportunities for more daily active recreation in our communities and 
work places - by working with a wide range of other providers including encouraging increased use of the great outdoors; 

••Specialist interventions e.g. exercise referral, outreach work using physical activity to improve the lives of priority groups 
enabling people to lead healthier lifestyles on a daily basis in their local communities. However, these will only be targeted 
interventions where there is evidence of need and no other alternative solution.

Our Second Key Outcome - Healthier and Prosperous Communities

●● This means stronger, safer and improved places to live, work and visit for all - communities with a sense of pride and identity. 

●● This vision includes:

••Strong successful local sports clubs at the heart of every community: maintaining local facilities and the environment; 
providing sport and physical activity; managing events; attracting young people; engaging volunteers; creating safer 
and socially cohesive places to live and work, helping to keep older people involved and active locally; supporting and 
promoting sporting success which in turn creates role models, community pride and a feeling of wellbeing and positivity.

P
age 53



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

13

●● In major conurbations and visitor destinations, commercial leisure attractions can also be a dynamic for regeneration 
- creating a better place to live and work, attracting employers and businesses and creating jobs, e.g. in North 
Wales - a new water park and leisure attraction in the Rhyl coastal resort will attract over 350,000 visitors as well as 
servicing over 40,000 local residents; or in Swansea - LC2 attracting over 750,000 footfalls a year - Wales’s most 
visited paid for attraction for the last 7 years. Our Centre of Sporting Excellence used by Coleg y Cymoedd, Welsh 
Rugby Union and Dragons Rugby provides a prestigious, specialist regional sports facility attracting visitors to the 
area, supporting sporting success and stimulating local pride.

●● We will promote Healthier and Prosperous Communities by: 

••Working with community sports clubs and their governing bodies to help our clubs become bigger, stronger 
and more sustainable; assisting them to improve their facilities, encouraging more volunteers and creating more 
sporting opportunities for participation and success;

••Reviewing the commercial business case and options for a new or improved leisure attraction in the Caerphilly 
Basin to take account of a growth in new homes and to support our economic regeneration objectives for the area.

••Engaging with pre-school children through ‘Community Tots’ based around fundamental movement skills and 
piloting a pre-school training offer to public and private providers to upskill their workforce.

Our Third Key Outcome: securing a more efficient and financially sustainable future offer 

●● As well as our aspirations for a healthier, more physically active and successful sporting County Borough and to 
close the north/south gap that exists in the average life expectancy between our residents, we also have to secure 
financial savings and achieve these positive outcomes with increasingly less resources. This will demand that we are 
smart and focussed in our future actions.

●● We will secure a more efficient and financially sustainable offer by:

••Maximising the use of all our community amenities and the local environment, encouraging people to take 
responsibility for their own health and wellbeing in a sustainable way. Our approach to communities will focus on 
building on strengths recognising each community is different and it is neither affordable or sustainable for the 
Council to be expected to continue providing the same service;

Our Centre 
of Sporting 
Excellence used by 
Coleg y Cymoedd, 
Welsh Rugby 
Union and Dragons 
Rugby provides 
a prestigious, 
specialist regional 
sports facility...

P
age 54



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

14

••Maximising use of assets through co-locations, invest to save models and aim to reduce subsidy levels at our 
strategic leisure centres to below a range of £1 to £1.20 per user;

••Creating more sustainable facilities by improving schools use agreements; investment in more attractive 
strategic facilities leading to a growth in visitor numbers and rationalisation reducing overall running costs; 

••Focussing our unique and essential role on providing specialist interventions in communities and with groups 
where it is most needed whilst recognising and supporting the role of others in providing opportunities;

••Motivating young people will be a key priority as we work collaboratively with others to inspire activity for 
life - generating more active adults - commissioning and supporting our schools to provide the right learning 
environment ensuring that facilities are also available for community activity at appropriate times;

••Where there is a business case, we will invest in key, strategic facilities to ensure they are appropriate, attractive, 
inspirational and lifestyle convenient alongside working to maximise the impact of all community amenities; 

••Finally, we will ensure that strategic facilities directly operated by us receive the level of regular investment 

required to ensure that equipment and facilities are safe, functional, modern and inspirational.

Motivating young 
people will be 
a key priority 
as we work 
collaboratively with 
others to inspire 
activity for life

P
age 55



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

15

A REVIEW OF WHAT WE KNOW - 
INFORMING FUTURE DECISIONS 
CELEBRATING OUR ACHIEVEMENTS 

●● Customer satisfaction

•• In our bi-annual consultation over 85% of residents said they were satisfied with sport and leisure, recreation and sports  
ground services, with over 90% satisfied with country parks;

••Our customer satisfaction score is 98% which is 8% above the UK national average.

●● The performance of our leisure centres

••We have been able to invest in some of our facilities to improve provision e.g. new fitness suites and 3G pitches. This has  
generated an increase in visitor numbers and we now also have over 150,000 registered Smart Card users;

••We have also continued to achieve the nationally recognised Quest quality assurance accreditation;

••However, despite our leisure centre subsidy having reduced by over £500,000 over the last 5 years, it still demands over 70%  
of the sport and leisure budget so the future performance and affordability of our leisure centres needs to be addressed.

●● Our parks and great outdoors

••We have been successful in achieving a Green Flag status at 5 of our outdoor parks where we provide a range of activities  
and create a place people can enjoy;

•• It is important to build on these strengths and the significant amount of green space that is available to promote physical and  
mental wellbeing;

••Caerphilly Adventures successfully uses our great outdoors to support the Education Service and Families First initiatives and work with 
young people and their families improving family relations, parenting, confidence and self-esteem and delivering Duke of Edinburgh Awards.

P
age 56



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

16

●● Our children and young people

••47% of primary and secondary school children aged 7-16 engage in sport and physical activity 3 times a week 
and overall, there have been year on year increases in participation;

••Over 57% of 16 year olds are also members of a sports club in Caerphilly County Borough.

●● Sports development initiatives and partnerships

••Free Swimming initiatives take place at all leisure centres and participation rates have increased year on year;

••Caerphilly 10K is now in its 6th year attracting circa 3,000 runners and is part of the Welsh athletics annual race 
calendar;

••The National Exercise Referral Scheme targeting clients who are at risk of developing, or have, a chronic disease 
has benefited over 1,000 people a year helping improve those participants’ quality of life and life expectancy;

••The Council is playing a lead role in the Active Gwent regional collaboration for community sport and promoting 
Positive Futures and Tackling Inequalities initiatives - benefiting children and young people from deprived 
communities who are living in poverty and being supported through an inclusion programme using sport to 
engage young people - attendances have grown by over 1,200 to 9,000 in 2017;

••The Daily Mile Initiative is embedded across our Primary Schools and is helping children get fit by walking or 
running for 15 minutes each school day;

••We have contributed to the “large scale change” collaborative programme with Sport Wales, Public Health Wales, 
Aneurin Bevan Health Board and Blaenau Gwent/Torfaen County Borough Councils aimed at getting females 
more active to improve health outcomes in the Heads of Valleys area. This has been a successful collaboration 
leading to a number of success stories and lifestyle changes;

•• Increasing women and girls participation is particularly important for health benefits and the Lets Go Girls 
Initiative encourages activity providers and females interested in taking part in activity to connect. 

●● Building on these significant achievements, this strategy sets out the direction for the future of sport and active 
recreation in Caerphilly County Borough to ensure the continued provision of a wide range of opportunities to 
benefit the health and wellbeing of our residents.

Free Swimming 
initiatives take 
place at all leisure 
centres and 
participation rates 
have increased 
year on year.

P
age 57



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

17

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH - THE PLACE WE LIVE IN

●● The County Borough is spread across a wide geographical area and made up of very different urban, rural, more 
affluent and some very deprived local communities.

●● The 5 principle town centres are: Caerphilly; Blackwood; Risca; Bargoed; and Ystrad Mynach.

●● Approximately 80% of the County Borough is classed as rural with a variety of attractive outdoor activity spaces i.e. 
uplands, lakes and rivers, public rights of way, country parks, nature reserves and many other areas that can be 
used for healthy active lifestyles.

●● Spread across the County Borough there are over 500 different sport and physical activity places, many are old 
and have become ‘tired’, are not cost-effective to run with inefficient heating, lighting and insulation services and 
no longer attractive to new participants or fit for future purposes.

●● Looking to the Future

••More emphasis needs to be placed on the promotion of the wide variety of opportunities across the borough as 
well as in neighbouring areas;

••Different approaches are needed to respond to the highly varied and different local community needs with 
priority given to addressing the greatest health and activity challenges in the most deprived Heads of the Valley 
communities;

••The 5 town centres and population hubs should be the future focus of strategic provision - travel to destinations 
with good transport links. Furthermore, any future strategic sport and active recreation provision should be 
shared use on education sites. They are an essential requirement for Curricular and Extra Curricular activity and 
a cost effective way of providing expensive facilities that also serve community needs;

••The Council must address the whole facilities infrastructure as any investment to create fit for future generations 
facilities will first demand rationalisation and savings in order to finance better quality, more sustainable, fit for 
purpose facilities in strategic locations. 

Different approaches 
are needed to 
respond to the 
highly varied and 
different local 
community needs...

P
age 58



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

18

➜

people within 
the next 20 
years and 
alongside this 

significant additional housing is planned 
particularly in the south of the County 
Borough in the Caerphilly basin area.

The population is expected to grow by over

2,155

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH... ABOUT THE PEOPLE 

180,000

2050

Caerphilly County 
Borough has some of 
the most deprived areas 
in Wales. It has the 5th 
highest percentage of 
people claiming benefits 
and the joint 5th lowest 
employment rate of 16 to 
64 year olds compared 
to the rest of Wales. 

of adults in the County Borough do not 
meet national physical activity guidelines. 

The percentage of adults who are overweight or 
obese within Caerphilly County Borough is 4% 
higher than the Wales average of 59%, and by 
2050 it is predicted that 60% of adult men, 50%  
of adult women and 25% of children will be obese.

It is anticipated that 
numbers of people 
between 16 and 64 
will decrease over the 
next 20 years, but the 
numbers of people aged 
over 65 will increase 
by nearly 42.2% in the 
same period.

POPULATION SIZE

ECONOMIC PROFILE

HEALTH

people live in Caerphilly County Borough.

It is the 5th largest local authority 
in Wales by population.

People living in areas of higher 
deprivation also have higher levels of 
ill health with life expectancy varying 
greatly depending on where you 
live. Between the least and most 
deprived areas there is a healthy life 
expectancy gap of 13 years for men 
and nearly 14.6 years for women.

60% 50% 25% P45

AGE PROFILE

13 14.6

➜

➜

5th5th

74% 16

64

65+P
age 59



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

19

●● Looking to the Future

••There is a need to give priority to help increase activity levels to reduce the health inequalities and levels of 
obesity with a focus on local community solutions and engaging young people - our future generations;

••A growing and changing population will require appropriate levels of provision to meet demand and with new 
housing developments comes opportunities to negotiate planning gains to support future community needs - 
this sport and active recreation strategy should be used to support the business case for these plans;

••There will be a growing need to focus on helping maintain active and independent lifestyles amongst an ever 
increasing ageing population with more diverse needs.

There will be a 
growing need to 
focus on helping 
maintain active 
and independent 
lifestyles...

P
age 60



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

20

WHICH OF THE SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION ACTIVITIES ARE THE MOST POPULAR 

●● People leading healthy active lives do so through a wide variety of mediums ranging from allotment gardening and 
domestic activities to work place activities, cycling to work, walking to a bus stop, swimming, walking the dog etc. 

●● As well as this, there are over 87 recognised sport and physical activities to choose from ranging from dance, 
yoga, netball, fencing, a wide range of martial arts, weight training, gymnastics, angling, golf to team sports like 
netball, rugby and football.

●● However, the most significant numbers of adult participation figures are achieved through individual exercise and 
informal activities which are easy to access and fit into busy lifestyles - walking, cycling and jogging or using the 
great outdoors with few activities dependent on our built facilities. The most popular activities amongst adults are:

••walking - 47% of adults participating;

•• indoor exercise activities - 21% of adults participating.

●● The great outdoors - our natural resources are also important for encouraging healthier and more active lifestyles; 
promoting mental as well as physical wellbeing - 35% of adults have identified they would like to visit the outdoors 
to be more active more often with the range of activities becoming more diverse. An example of this is Parkrun:

••Junior Parkrun - 44 Juniors (age 4-14 years) are participating each week, from 15 clubs;

••Parkrun (Age 14+) 166 Adults are participating each week from over 203 clubs.

Future Sport and Active Recreation

●● Adults - into the future

•• ‘Acting today for an Active Tomorrow’ identifies trends which will transform sport in Wales, in a report produced 
in 2014 by A Sport Wales’s Advisory Group. This identified a number of themes that should be considered by 
providers in making future plans i.e. the need to be more responsive to:

•• People leading more demanding lifestyles and having less time therefore requiring easier access to doorstep 
activities;

The most 
significant 
numbers of adult 
participation 
figures are 
achieved through 
individual exercise 
and informal 
activities.

P
age 61



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

21

•• Customers having higher expectations needing a more ‘commercial standard’ of opportunity i.e. more 
customer orientated services as well as higher quality facilities;

•• The need for greater use of technology to engage people i.e. through mobile devices; 

•• A more mixed economy of facility providers as a result of emerging not for profit operators, social and 
community interest companies alongside an ever-changing commercial sector;

••Future sport and active recreation opportunities need to be ever more “lifestyle convenient”, for example:

•• Easy to Play Sport e.g. Futsal and 5 a-side leagues; Back to Netball and Hockey - social participation for 
adults; Parks Tag Rugby and other easy to organise and access small-sided team games;

•• Easy to access outdoor fitness activities when it is most suitable to the individual i.e. in safe walking, jogging 
and cycling settings (Caerphilly County Borough Council already supports many events that help respond to 
these demands i.e. parkruns, cycling events etc.).

●● Young People - into the future 

••Sport England’s Youth Insights Pack (August 2014) highlights how it is important to look at ways of more 
effectively reaching out to young people - they have grown up in an environment that is totally different to that 
of previous generations - this demands change just to maintain levels of interest amongst each new age 
group i.e.:

•• Technology is an integral part of young people’s lives;

•• Reasons for young people to take part need to be relevant to their lives - what matters to them, not what 
matters to adults and decision makers. Teenagers are also increasingly looking towards the benefits of 
active lifestyles for reasons of looking and feeling good as well as health and fitness;

•• Participation by children is influenced by what they get offered at school, as well as by the views of 
parents and friends. Once these influences are removed and lifestyles change, activity levels start to decline;

Future sport and 
active recreation 
opportunities 
need to be ever 
more “lifestyle 
convenient.”

P
age 62



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

22

●● Looking to the Future 

••Caerphilly County Borough Council will need to review and adjust its unique role in response to the many 
competing and alternative offers that are available;

••To significantly increase activity levels there is a need to give priority to the opportunities that are attractive to 
the biggest audiences. Where possible this will include investment in better quality facilities for the biggest and 
fastest growing participation activities - those that have become more popular due to changing lifestyles and 
people choosing to be active for health and social reasons i.e. exercise, fitness, dance, walking, jogging, cycling, 
5 a-side football etc;

••Sport and physical activity facilities in schools, particularly our secondary schools, need to be designed to 
inspire a nation of young people committed to becoming active adults - currently many school facilities do not 
meet these expectations;

••Alongside activity venues in local communities, strategically located specialist sports facilities are important to 
provide for training and competition at the higher levels and to deliver the vision for a ‘nation of champions’, 
however whilst specialist facilities are needed they are not necessarily required in all Local Authority areas;

••To embrace these recommendations we will adopt the ‘Facilities for Future Generations - blueprint for sport and 
active recreation in Wales’. (Welsh Government and Sport Wales [March 2016]).

To significantly 
increase activity 
levels there is 
a need to give 
priority to the 
opportunities that 
are attractive 
to the biggest 
audiences.

P
age 63



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

23

MAJOR CHALLENGES  
TO BE OVERCOME
BETTER HEALTH CHALLENGES

●● Since the Welsh Health Survey started, obesity levels have increased and there has been little evidence of change in physical activity 
levels. Survey reports have shown that:

••58% of adults are overweight and 22% obese;

••33%of adults are limited in their day to day activities because of health problems or disability;

••Only 29% of adults are reported as physically active but there are more men than women active although this decreases with age;

••Around 1/3 of adults are not physically active at all.

●● Low levels of physical activity along with unhealthy eating are leading to significant increases in levels of obesity. 

●● There are particularly higher incidents of poor health and low levels of physical activity in areas of multiple deprivation. 

●● Overall it is estimated that the total cost of physical inactivity to Wales is in the regional of £650,000,000 per annum.

●● Despite these trends ‘Creating an Active Wales’ reports how physical activity has many mental as well as physical health and 
wellbeing benefits i.e. 

••Up to 50% reduced risk of developing major chronic diseases such as heart diseases/ diabetes and some cancers;

••A 20-30% reduced risk of premature death.

●● Looking to the Future

••Targeted community interventions and low cost, accessible/local, indoor and outdoor health and fitness activity centres are more 
likely to be attractive to women and disengaged participants who it is difficult to encourage to adopt more active lifestyles.

P
age 64



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

24

MAJOR FINANCIAL CHALLENGES

●● Caerphilly County Borough Council has already made considerable savings in recent years - over £82,000,000 but 
further savings of over £34,000,000 are still needed in the next 3 years.

●● For the most part, sport and active recreation provision is not a statutory requirement of local government and 
although Caerphilly County Borough Council is committed to maintaining front line services, it does recognise 

things need to change.

••The Community & Leisure Services budget must achieve reductions over the course of this Strategy.

●● Looking to the Future 

••The more effective use of our many different community facilities will need to be part of the future offer to 
increase activity levels;

••This strategy also makes the case for rationalisation enabling some savings to be used to enable investment 
alongside innovation and transformation. 

The more effective 
use of our 
many different 
community 
facilities will need 
to be part of the 
future offer to 
increase activity 
levels.

P
age 65



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

25

BUILT FACILITY CHALLENGES

●● The Council has too many different facilities 
including leisure centres, many of which are 
old and vary in quality with high levels of 
maintenance required - there is a need for fewer 
but better quality provision. A summary schedule 
of the 500+ different sport and physical 
activity spaces across the County Borough is 

summarised in the adjacent table.

●● Caerphilly County Borough Council’s 
independent review of Leisure Centres in 2014 
also reported the need for a rationalisation of the 

separately managed leisure centres.

●● 8 of the 10 leisure centres are on Secondary 
School sites and used by schools during the 
day. This use is heavily subsidised through 
the Sport & Leisure budget. Four Secondary 
Schools have strategic leisure facilities of which 
any community use is not managed by Sport & 
Leisure Services. 

●● The provision of appropriate sport and physical 
activity facilities on secondary school sites that 
are accessible for Curricular and Extra Curricular 
activities is a requirement - wherever possible 
these should be managed to be available for 
community use out of school hours. 

Table 1: Summary Schedule of Sport and Active Recreation 

Facilities Where Physical Activity Can Occur Total Number of 
Activity Spaces

Indoor

Sports Halls 15

Community Centres 50

Youth Centres 20

Swimming Pools 8

Primary Schools i.e. halls 80

Outdoor

Artificial Turf Pitches (ATPs)
Type 1: Sand based shorter pile more suitable for hockey
Type 2: �‘3G’ pitches longer pile with rubber infill more suitable for 

football and rugby

16
Type 1: 7

Type 2: 9 (2@COSE)

Country Parks 6

Youth Shelters 21

Playgrounds (excluding primary school playgrounds) 104

Multi-use Games Areas 25

Skate Parks 9

Kick Walls 10

Football and Rugby Grass Pitches (excluding school pitches) 116

Bowling Greens 20

Cricket Wickets 9

Tennis Courts 18

500+

P
age 66



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

26

●● The majority of the Council’s investment (approximately 70%) in ‘Sport & Leisure Services’ - is taken up by the cost of running 
traditional leisure facilities - with Caerphilly County Borough Council operating more Leisure Centres than any other Local Authority in 

Wales.

●● The cost of maintaining the Leisure Centres in the County Borough is the highest in Wales - over £1m per annum: 

••The subsidy per person is over £1.50 - to bring this subsidy closer to other areas, this figure should be less than £1 to £1.20 - this 
cannot be achieved without rationalisation and modernisation;

••There is a significant capital investment liability due to the age of the leisure centres - currently estimated at over £3m; 

••There is also a need for a capital budget to invest in upgraded equipment such as modernised fitness suites, spin bikes and new 
3G pitches which increase levels of use following investment.

●● Customer comment reports have also identified the need for improvement i.e. ‘changing rooms need upgrading’, ‘the centre is 

looking dated now’ and the need for change given the current financial climate is also recognised.

●● Generally across Wales less than 30% of the adult population visit a leisure centre and many of the County Borough Leisure Centres 
are not generating more users - in half these numbers are declining. Only 3 key strategically located centres in Caerphilly County 
Borough are attracting over 250,000 visits a year with the majority servicing less than 100,000 visits per year.

●● Looking to the Future 

••Facilities for Future Generations - the blueprint for sport and active recreation in Wales’. Welsh Government and Sport Wales 
(March 2016) will be adopted by Caerphilly County Borough Council providing the framework for future sport and active recreation 
facilities. This will take into consideration:

•• The needs of future generations; 

•• The need for inspirational learning environments for children and young people on school sites; 

•• The need to invest in better quality, more fit for purpose and future facilities that are strategically located;

•• The need to rationalise the existing number of different facilities that are no longer fit for purpose or sustainable into the future 
set in context with all other active space facilities such as community centres, primary schools, youth centres, outdoor parks etc.;

•• Defining future expectations for and delivery of aquatic provision linked to facility rationalisation.

P
age 67



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

27

OTHER FACILITY CHALLENGES - MAXIMISING THE IMPACT OF ALL SPORT AND ACTIVE 
RECREATION AMENITIES AND OPPORTUNITIES 

Outdoor sports pitches

●● Grass sports pitches across the County Borough also present a future challenge. Changing climates and reducing budgets 
provide an increasing challenge for the maintenance of these facilities alongside which capital investment in improved or new 
drainage is important to help overcome pitch quality issues. Increasingly long spells of wet weather, has resulted in these 
important facilities which serve the biggest sports becoming a threat to future levels of activity.

●● Furthermore, less than 30% of the cost of maintaining the grass pitches is recovered through income due to the low levels of 
use that is possible to sustain on the grass pitches.

●● In total, there are over 120 sports pitches, 20 bowling greens, 9 cricket wickets and a number of tennis courts, more than any 
other Local Authority in Wales. There are also a large number of football and rugby clubs - over 130 relying on these facilities. 
However, many of these clubs are small and ‘nomadic’ relying on access to different and often poor quality grass pitches. On 
the other hand, Clubs with owned or leased facilities are able to invest more time and resources into maintaining their pitches 
to a higher standard and can more easily attract members, generate income and become a stronger community clubs. 

●● In addition to the natural turf pitches, there are 16 artificial turf pitches - again more than any other area in Wales. Nine of these 
pitches are 3G football/rugby surfaces - a full sized floodlit 3G pitch can provide the same level of use as 5 grass pitches.

••Looking to the Future Artificial turf ‘3G’ pitches are an important part of future outdoor pitch provision - they provide a 
consistent quality of service that can be used in all weathers;

••There is a case to be made for more strategically located 3G pitches to support grass-pitch provision - also taking account of 
the potential to maximise the beneficial use of school facilities;

••Future approaches should include support for clubs to play a greater role in the future management and maintenance 
of sports pitches and pavilions. This would help and lead towards better facilities as well as stronger, more sustainable 
community clubs;

••At least one 3G pitch should be available on all secondary school sites with a community sports partnership that guarantees 
the out of hours use and the formation of sports clubs hubs.

P
age 68



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

28

MAXIMISING COMMUNITY USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES

●● The Welsh Government and Local Authority 21st Century Schools programme is intended to help create ‘fit for the 
future’ sport and active lifestyle facilities for Wales. Investment is expected to deliver:

••Learning environments supporting improvement and better education outcomes including health and wellbeing; 

••Greater economies and efficiencies through better use of resources including community use;

••Sustainable facilities that help to reduce costs and carbon footprints;

••Finally, this is more than a building programme - 21st Century Schools are intended to impact on both public 
and community learning, health and wellbeing outcomes.

●● This strategy recognises the importance of schools as an essential part of the future community sport and active 
recreation offer. Currently there is an inconsistent approach to access to school facilities for the wider community.

●● Looking to the Future

••The Community & Leisure and Education Services will establish a joint vision to deliver the healthy physical 
activity outcomes in this strategy as well as serving school and wider community needs. This will inform a robust 
joint use agreement with clear priorities and outcomes supported by appropriate sustainable funding models.

This strategy 
recognises the 
importance of 
schools as an 
essential part 
of the future 
community 
sport and active 
recreation offer.

P
age 69



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

29

PLAY AMENITIES

●● Caerphilly County Borough has 178 different “play” facilities including fixed play provision, kick walls, Multi Use 
Games Areas (MUGAs) skate parks etc. Such provision is governed by Welsh Government Play Sufficiency duties 
and is separately covered by bespoke strategies and plans.

P
age 70



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

30

OUTDOOR PARKS AND THE NATURAL OUTDOOR ENVIRONMENT

●● Of the 42% of the adult population reported by Sport Wales to be ‘hooked on sport’ in Caerphilly, the majority do 
so through activities taking place in facilities that don’t demand a strategic sports hall or swimming pool.

●● High levels of physical activity are enjoyed in a wide range of environments stretching from the countryside to 
highways, paths and bridal ways used for walking, cycling and jogging.

●● The Active Travel Integrated Map includes the accessible walking and cycling routes across the county borough 
and links with the Sustrans National Cycle Network. This is supplemented by the delivery of kerbcraft and national 
standards cycle training, safely equipping and supporting children to lead more sustainable and healthy lives.

●● The natural resources in Caerphilly County Borough provide significant opportunities to increase activity levels.

●● It has a large number of high quality countryside as well as more traditional formal parks - 5 of which have a green 
flag accreditation.

●● There is a significant level of countryside and open space - the Countryside Service manages parks, rights of 
way, nature reserves/managed biodiversity sites and a canal network. In addition there is a substantial amount 
of unmanaged countryside and open space. There will be an opportunity to link delivery of the outcomes of this 
strategy with the emerging Green Infrastructure Strategy to support the network of interconnected green space  
to maximise its use for sport and active recreation.

●● The Council also provides an Outdoor Adventure Service which supports a range  
of outdoor activities as well as the Duke of Edinburgh award scheme.

●● Whilst important to this strategy, these areas of provision are separately  
covered by bespoke, formally adopted plans and strategies.

The natural 
resources in 
Caerphilly County 
Borough provide 
significant 
opportunities to 
increase activity 
levels.P

age 71



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

31

WHAT NEEDS TO BE DONE
1.	 Corporate Policy

a.	 In adopting this strategy Caerphilly County Borough Council recognises that sport and active recreation makes 
a significant contribution to achieve healthy lifestyles, education, economy and regeneration across the County 
Borough.

b.	 Recognising that it is no longer feasible to provide the same service, the Council’s unique role will focus on:

i.	 Working with others to make the best use of all available opportunities, facilities, funding and people;

ii.	 Making better and more innovative use of the widest possible range of indoor and outdoor physical activity 
spaces across all communities;

iii.	 Specialist interventions in approaches and places that will have the greatest long term health impact on 
priority target audiences and where no others are in a position to provide such assistance.

c.	 A joint approach to sport and active recreation with schools will be pursued to achieve a single, shared 
outcome of more young people becoming active adults through more inspirational learning experiences, 
whilst also ensuring the learning environments are maximised for community use out of school hours. This will 
include a new fit for purpose, robust joint use agreement with schools with clear priorities and outcomes.

2.	 Facilities

a.	 To inform future decision making, the Council will adopt:

i.	 The Welsh Government and Sport Wales Facilities Blueprint for Sport and Active Recreation (See Table 2) 
informing all physical activity spaces and their use across the County Borough;

ii.	 A decision making matrix for determining the provision of strategic Leisure facilities that are directly 
managed by the Sport & Leisure Service (See Table 3);

A joint approach 
to sport and active 
recreation with 
schools strategy 
will be pursued to 
achieve a single, 
shared outcome of 
more young people 
becoming active 
adults through 
more inspirational 
learning 
experiences.

P
age 72



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

32

iii.	  An “invest to save” strategy enabling the future rationalisation of some facilities, to help achieve a more 
sustainable future service alongside investment of some savings secured to enhance the quality and 
customer offer at strategic sites as well as in local communities.

Table 2: Blueprint for Future Generations - Sport and Active Recreation Facilities

Facilities Framework Action

Facilities Framework Level 1
Local community assets and club facilities essential to 
serve the needs of sport and doorstep activity - enabling 
daily active lifestyles i.e. the outdoors for green exercise, 
multipurpose community halls, sports clubs, primary 
schools, community parks, community centres, health 
centres, libraries, church and village halls.

Any future sport and active recreation facility delivery 
should consider all of these assets and their potential to 
provide locally accessible physical activity hubs particularly 
targeting deprived communities. Delivery should include 
opportunities for potential co-location and shared 
management to maximise sustainability of future community 
amenities.

Facilities Framework Level 2
Strategic, ‘travel to’ wider community facilities located on 
education/secondary school or college sites to maximise 
use, ensure value for money and because the provision of 
good quality inspirational physical activity facilities is an 
obligatory requirement for all schools.

The strategic policy should establish a clear expectation 
that future school facilities (buildings and pitches) deliver 
appropriate and fit for purpose physical activity, teaching 
and recreational spaces as well as contributing to the 
community sport and active recreation offer including 
the development of school/community sports club hub 
management models.

Facilities Framework Level 3
Large strategic “commercial” sport or leisure tourist 
attractions of regional or national significance. This would 
include leisure centre provision in the south west of the 
county borough and the Centre of Sporting Excellence.

Adopt a future sport and active recreation investment 
strategy that delivers a commercially sustainable leisure 
attraction in the south west of the county borough, in 
response to the significant  growth in new housing.

The strategic policy 
should establish a 
clear expectation 
that future school 
facilities deliver 
appropriate and 
fit for purpose 
physical activity...

P
age 73



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

33

Table 3: Strategic Leisure Centre Needs Assessment Matrix

Assessment Criteria Measurement Factors

Impact analysis
Number of visitors

1. Over 250k visits pa

2. Shared daytime use with education provider

Need
Centre of population
Access - travel to location; public transport routes; car parking
No competing facilities

1. Easy to access car park, major public routes
2. �No other local competing with school/community/

commercial offers

Fitness for purpose
Fit for future generations
21st Century design
Inspirational school

1. �Range of 21st century amenities - fitness, dance, 
activity studio, 3G, spa

2. �Strategic standalone facility only in major 
population centre/visitor destination

Running cost
Subsidy per user/sustainability

1. Subsidy per user under £1 to £1.20

b.	 A rationalisation of facilities will result in 4 strategic, high quality, multi service leisure centres that are managed 
by the authority’s Sport and Leisure Service. The 4 strategic centres will be located in Risca, Caerphilly, 
and Newbridge, and one in the Bargoed/Aberbargoed areas to serve the north of the county borough. It is 
therefore anticipated that the other leisure centres would either transfer to school management (if they are joint 
use facilities located on a school site, subject to governing body approval) or could close completely. Careful 
consideration will be given to opportunities for alternative provision before any facilities are withdrawn.

c.	 The Council will clarify the future swimming entitlement along with supporting the rationale for a sustainable 
programme of aquatic delivery also informing the need and scope of future aquatic facilities.

d.	 In terms of Outdoor Facilities, the Council will:

i.	 develop a plan to enhance and maximise the impact of outdoor spaces, playing fields, parks and informal 
recreational spaces, where possible utilising investment resulting from planning gain;

P
age 74



Caerphilly County Borough Council SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY 2019-2029

34

The Council will 
continue to adopt 
a collaborative 
approach with 
schools to motivate 
children and young 
people to adopt and 
continue healthy 
active lifestyles...

ii.	 maximise the use of 3G facilities for school, community and weekend competitive use alongside the grass 
pitch network, supporting the development of stronger sports clubs. 

3.	 Sport and active recreation outreach and intervention programmes

	 The Council will continue to:

a.	 Collaborate with schools to motivate children and young people to adopt and continue healthy active lifestyles 
through inspirational physical activity experiences whilst they are in education;

b.	 Provide targeted support to help keep older people involved and active in local communities helping local 
organisations to provide ways of supporting older people/less independent people lead healthy lives through 
low intensity, social and easy to access physical activities;

c.	 Encourage and support federations of clubs sharing resources, helping to build stronger, more sustainable, 
and successful sports clubs;

d.	 Provide essential support underpinning sporting success;

e.	 Provide specialist interventions to reach targeted audiences where there is evidence of need and no other 
alternative provider;

f.	 Lead the regional Active Gwent collaboration programme to increase participation in sport and physical activity 
in a way that has the greatest impact in Caerphilly.

P
age 75



Caerphilly County Borough Council

SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION 
STRATEGY 2019-2029

P
age 76



Report of Consultation October 2018 
 

 

 

APPENDIX 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report of Consultation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Draft Sport and Active Recreation Strategy 2019 – 2029 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

October 2018 
 

Page 77



Report of Consultation October 2018 
 

 

 

 

1 

 

Introduction 
The council has prepared and published the Draft Sport and Active Recreation Strategy 2019-29  
 
 
 
 

The Consultation  
The Draft Caerphilly Sport and Active Recreation Strategy was the subject of a ten week 
consultation exercise between 16th July 2018 and 21st September 2018. 
 
 

The responses and how they are addressed 
The report considers the comments made during the consultation  

Page 78



Report of Consultation October 2018 
 

 

 

 

2 

 

 Draft Sport and Active Recreation Strategy 2019 - 2029 
 

The Responses 
Comments were invited on the Draft Sport and Active Recreation Strategy’ in a structured manner,  
 
A total of 711 responses were received to the consultation questionnaire with a further 20 written 
responses received. 
 
The issues raised have been grouped under their respective section. An Officer response 
considers whether changes to the draft Strategy need to be made. 
 

Equalities Impact Assessment 
In line with the Council’s Equalities Monitoring procedures, respondents were asked whether any 
of their answers to questions in the survey were impacted by any of the following (age, disability, 
ethnic origin, gender, gender reassignment, marital status, religious belief or non-belief, use of 
Welsh language, BSL or other languages, nationality or responsibility for any dependents). 
 

 

Page 79



Report of Consultation October 2018 
 

 

 

 

3 
 

Key Outcomes 
 
Three key outcomes for the draft Sport and Active Recreation Strategy have been 
identified. These are:  
 

Better Health 

Healthier and Prosperous Communities 

 Securing a more efficient and financially sustainable future offer. 
 
Respondents were asked whether any Outcomes were missing and, if so, to provide details. 
 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Proposal 

A key theme highlighted in the 
comments around missing outcomes 
was that of ensuring that sport and 
active recreation is inclusive and 
accessible to all.   

Under the Healthier and Prosperous Communities Outcome within 
the draft Strategy it was stated that this means “stronger, safer, and 
improved places to live, work and visit for all”. The draft 10 year 
Strategy reflects a fair and equitable distribution of resources. 
Agree that the intention to ensure that sport and active recreation is 
inclusive and accessible to all can be strengthened. 

Second Key Outcome – Healthier 
and Prosperous Communities 
amended to make the intention 
clear. Other amendments made to 
the proposed draft Strategy to 
reinforce this aspect. 

Provision should be accessible to those 
with disabilities, mental health issues 
and those of all ages. 
 

Agreed. No additional changes to the Draft 
Strategy proposed. 

Need to ensure provision is accessible 
to those living in deprivation, making 
reference to the lack of availability of 
public transport and the additional cost 
of transport for those required to travel 

Of the respondents to the consultation on the draft Strategy 68% 
indicated that they normally travel to the place where they take part 
in sport and active recreation by car, 23% walk, 4% cycle 4% use 
public transport. All future provision will be accessible by public 
transport and will ensure, so far as reasonably practicable, 

No additional changes to the Draft 
Strategy proposed. 

P
age 80



Report of Consultation October 2018 
 

 

 

 

4 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Proposal 

further distances to access facilities. geographic coverage across the county borough. Implementation 
ensures a fair and just allocation of resources that will provide for 
continued sport and leisure provision into the future for the benefit 
of all. 
 
The draft Strategy proposes a financially sustainable vision to 
secure sport and active recreation provision in the county borough 
into the future. In doing so any financial pressure to increase prices 
for customers is reduced thereby promoting accessibility across 
socio-economic groups. 

There is a need to provide support for 
those who wish to take part in a variety 
of sports. 

Agreed. This is reflected in the draft Strategy. No changes proposed. 

P
age 81



Report of Consultation October 2018 
 

 

 

 

5 
 

 

Outcome 1: Better Health 
 
Three actions have been identified as key to delivering the outcome of achieving 'Better Health':  
 

 Inspiring our future generations to adopt healthy active lifestyles; 

 Supporting and encouraging the provision of more opportunities for more daily active recreation in our 
communities and work places; 

 Specialist interventions e.g. exercise referral, outreach work using physical activity. 
 

Respondents were asked whether there are any actions missing and whether there is anything else we can do to support the outcome of 
achieving better health. 
 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Comments under the “better health” 
outcome reinforced comments made in 
the previous section relating to missing 
outcomes.   

Noted. No changes to the draft Strategy 
proposed. 

Promoting healthy living through 
education.  This action is not just about 
increasing activity levels but ensuring a 
good understanding of role of diet and 
exercise. 

Agreed - We have identified that in delivering the Strategy there is 
an opportunity to improve the awareness and marketing of the full 
sport and active recreation offer across the county borough 
including that provided by others. Supplementing existing delivery 
mechanisms such as National Exercise Referral Scheme (NERS) 
and Nutrition Complete 

No changes proposed to the draft 
Strategy. 

Making better use of outdoor space 
and improving active travel routes 

Although the primary purpose of Active Travel is for connecting 
people to places for a purpose it is important in promoting healthy 

Text added at page 30 to expand 
upon the role of Active Travel and 

P
age 82



Report of Consultation October 2018 
 

 

 

 

6 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

(specifically cycle networks and 
footpaths) to encouraging general 
fitness through incidental exercise. 

lifestyles and is included in the Strategy. However, the links can be 
strengthened in particular in relation to the availability of the 
adopted Active Travel Existing Routes map as well as the delivery 
of kerbcraft and national standards training safely equipping and 
supporting children to lead more sustainable and healthy lives. 

include the significant infrastructure 
that exists across the county 
borough. 

Ensuring careful consideration of the 
importance of the sport and active 
recreation provision in the long term 
health of residents and ensuring that 
no changes result in poorer health 
outcomes for residents. 

Agreed – Corporate Objective 5 ‘Creating a county borough that 
supports a healthy lifestyle’ is clearly articulated within the strategy. 
The strategy also recognises the broad spectrum of opportunities 
that exist to encourage residents to lead physically active lifestyles 
to reduce obesity and health inequalities across the county 
borough. Adopting a collaborative approach will be essential in 
supporting all stakeholders to deliver programmes / facilities that 
support the vision and key principles  

No changes proposed to the draft 
Strategy. 

Strengthen reference to links between 
the outdoors and mental health. 

The draft Strategy highlighted that physical activity has many 
mental as well as physical health and wellbeing benefits as well as 
the significant amount of green space that is available to promote 
wellbeing. Agree that there are opportunities to strengthen those 
links. 

Text added at pages 15 and 20 to 
make it explicit that “wellbeing” 
encompasses both physical and 
mental health. Text also added to 
page 8 recognising the contribution 
to social connections, cohesive 
communities, and active citizenship. 

Ensure physical literacy from preschool 
and through the school setting. 

Agreed. Pre-school children are engaged through our Community 
Tots delivery which is based around fundamental movement skills 
and covers a wide range of sports and activities, the programme 
caters for children aged 2-6yrs. We are also piloting a preschool 
training offer to public and private providers to upskill their 
workforce. The Strategy commits to collaborating with schools to 
motivate children and young people to adopt and continue healthy 
active lifestyles, as well as restating the Council’s Wellbeing 
Objective to achieve a single, shared outcome of more young 
people becoming active adults. 

Action added to the Healthier and 
Prosperous Communities Outcome 
in relation to pre-school activity at 
page 13. 

P
age 83



Report of Consultation October 2018 
 

 

 

 

7 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Promote active workplaces. Agreed. As detailed above the Strategy includes the action: 
Supporting and encouraging the provision of more opportunities for 
more daily active recreation in our communities and work places. 
The Council is showing leadership in this regard through its own 
Wellbeing@work Group. 
 

No changes proposed to the draft 
Strategy. 

 

Outcome 2: Healthier and Prosperous Communities 
 

Three actions have been identified as key to delivering the outcome of achieving ‘Healthier and Prosperous 
Communities’: 
 

Working with community sports clubs and their governing bodies to help our clubs become bigger ,stronger and 
more sustainable; 

Reviewing the commercial business case and options for a new or improved leisure attraction in the south west of 
the county borough. 

 
Respondents were asked whether there were any actions missing to support the outcome of healthier and prosperous communities. 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Encourage and support local clubs and 
organisations to provide a range of 
activities including athletics, running, 
hockey, bowls. 

Agreed. Within the draft Strategy under the Healthier and 
Prosperous Communities Outcome there is the Action: Working 
with community sports clubs and their governing bodies to help our 
clubs become bigger, stronger and more sustainable. 

No changes proposed to the draft 
Strategy 

The Council should work with other 
providers of sport and active recreation 

Agreed. Our collaborative approach and desire to work in 
partnership with others is reflected in our current service delivery 

No changes proposed to the draft 
Strategy. 

P
age 84



Report of Consultation October 2018 
 

 

 

 

8 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

within the county borough. and the draft Strategy. We have identified that in delivering the 
Strategy there is an opportunity to improve the awareness and 
marketing of the full sport and active recreation offer across the 
county borough including that provided by others. 

Work collaboratively with other 
organisations to encourage community-
led innovation and involvement. 
  

Agreed – The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act (2015) Wales 
makes clear that public services should be working closely with 
other partners to secure future provision and explore s range of 
opportunities for innovation and involvement 

No changes proposed to the draft 
Strategy. 

Community involvement and an 
innovative approach are key to achieve 
change. 

Agreed – See point above No changes proposed to the draft 
Strategy. 

Support local clubs and other 
providers. 

Agreed. Within the draft Strategy under the Healthier and 
Prosperous Communities Outcome we have an action: Working 
with community sports clubs and their governing bodies to help our 
clubs become bigger ,stronger and more sustainable 

No changes proposed to the draft 
Strategy. 

Consider the links between sport and 
active recreation provision and crime 
and anti-social behaviour. 
 

Noted the Strategy highlights existing delivery through the Positive 
Futures scheme supporting the approach of sport and active 
recreation as a mechanism for improving community cohesion. This 
work will be further supported by enhanced collaboration with a 
range of stakeholders including schools and local clubs / 
associations.   

No changes proposed to the draft 
Strategy 

Provision needs to be accessible and 
affordable to all. 

Agreed. Accessibility and affordability are key drivers for the 
strategy. 

No changes proposed to the draft 
Strategy. 

 

Outcome 3: A more efficient and financially sustainable future provision 
 

Seven actions have been identified as key to delivering the outcome of achieving ‘A more efficient and financially 
sustainable future provision’:  

P
age 85



Report of Consultation October 2018 
 

 

 

 

9 
 

 

Maximising the use of all our community amenities and the local environment; 

Maximising use of assets through co-locations, invest to save models and the aim to reduce subsidy levels at our 
strategic leisure centres to between £1 and £1.20 per user; 

Creating more sustainable facilities by improving schools use agreements and investment in more attractive 
strategic facilities; 

Focussing our unique and essential role on providing specialist interventions in communities; 

Motivating young people - commissioning and supporting our schools to provide the right learning environment 
that is also available for community activity at appropriate times; 

Where there is a business case, we will invest in key, strategic facilities; 

We will ensure that strategic facilities directly operated by us receive the level of regular investment required to 
ensure that equipment and facilities are safe, functional, modern and inspirational. 

 
Respondents were asked whether there were any actions missing to support the outcome of a more efficient and financially sustainable 
future provision. 

 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Ensure opening times allow for access 
to facilities at times when they are 
needed (full time working people, shift 
workers and during the day). 

Agreed and we currently offer broad opening hours for example: 
Caerphilly Leisure Centre, is open 7 days a week and from 6:15am 
to 10:00pm in the week; and likewise Newbridge Leisure Centre 
which is open 6:00am to 10:00pm in the week. 

No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

Ensure facilities provided are of a good 
quality (a number suggested that this 
was not currently the case). 

The Strategy is, in part, a response to this very issue. The majority 
of facilities were built in the late 1960s, early 1970s. Despite 
significant investment the last service wide condition surveys 
undertaken in 2012 identified circa £3 million of category 1, 2 and 3 
outstanding maintenance requirements. The Strategy proposes 

No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

P
age 86



Report of Consultation October 2018 
 

 

 

 

10 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

investment in more attractive strategic facilities where there is a 
business case and that they receive the level of regular investment 
required to ensure that equipment and facilities are safe, functional, 
modern and inspirational. 

Remove parking charges at country 
parks to support maximising the use of 
all our community amenities and the 
local environment 

We do offer season tickets so that regular users of our Country 
Parks are able to do so for less than £1 per week. However, this 
concern is acknowledge and we will look for any opportunities to 
address this matter further in the face of UK Government’s ongoing 
austerity measures. 

No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

Motivating young people beyond 
schools and education and inspiring 
future generations 

The Strategy commits to collaborating with schools to motivate 
children and young people to adopt and continue healthy active 
lifestyles, as well as restating the Council’s Wellbeing Objective to 
achieve a single, shared outcome of more young people becoming 
active adults. 

No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

Provision of alternative community 
health and leisure venues if local 
leisure centres are to close. 

Noted – The draft Strategy makes clear that there is a mixed 
economy of provision within the county borough that supports a 
broad range of opportunity and access to sport and active 
recreation. Working collaboratively to support partners and unlock 
the available opportunities is a key and essential component of the 
Strategy’s vision 

No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

Explore ways to ensure viability of 
existing provision including community 
centres and shared school/leisure use 
facilities/church halls and other 
community assets – this includes 
promoting what is available. 

Agreed – please see above point No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

There were mixed views in relation to 
the feasibility of using school facilities 
(access and capacity) 

The role of schools from both an educational and facility 
perspective is a key tenet of the strategic vision. Supporting 
schools and associated governing bodies to maximise access to 
facilities that support delivery of sport and active recreation will 

No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

P
age 87



Report of Consultation October 2018 
 

 

 

 

11 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

increase opportunity and place schools and the heart of developing 
cohesive communities. 

Motivating young people beyond 
schools and education and inspiring 
future generations. 

  

Acknowledging financial pressures 
whilst questioning economic 
sustainability versus true sustainability 
(health and deprivation). 

It is agreed that sustainability is much wider than financial 
pressures, but it would be wrong to ignore and not plan for the 
reality of the financial pressures that we face. As stated in the 
Strategy, “We must achieve a heathier county.” and Better Health is 
the first of three Key Outcomes that the Strategy aims to deliver. It 
is why the Strategy has been developed to set out a 10 year vision 
outlining how the Council will continue to have a major role in sport 
and active recreation for years to come.  
 
It is recognised that those living in our more deprived communities 
experience worse health outcomes and that health inequalities 
across the county borough remain. The Sport and Active 
Recreation Strategy aims to sustain countywide access to sport 
and active recreation opportunities. In relation to leisure facilities 
the Strategy proposes a fair and just distribution of resources 
including a strategic facility to serve the north of the county 
borough.  
 
As stated in the Strategy the Council promotes Positive Futures 
and Tackling Inequalities initiatives - benefiting children and young 
people from deprived communities through an inclusion programme 
using sport to engage young people - attendances have grown by 
over 1,200 to 9,000 in 2017. The Strategy also aims to build upon 
the “large scale change” collaborative programme  
aimed at getting females more active to improve health outcomes 

No changes proposed to the draft 
Strategy. 

P
age 88



Report of Consultation October 2018 
 

 

 

 

12 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

in the Heads of Valleys area and the Lets Go Girls 
Initiative. 

Removal of facilities from more 
deprived areas – cumulative impact. 

Please see above. No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

Consider closer links and reference to 
Public Services Board Well-being Plan 
Action Areas (including, but not limited 
to, the Natural Environment, 
Volunteering and Good Health & 
Wellbeing) and other thematic areas 
such as Active Travel and Play 

Agreed that there is an opportunity to be clearer about the links 
between this Strategy and the PSB’s Wellbeing Plan. Our semi-
rural environment is a significant asset, the Well-being Plan aims to 
increase the contribution our environment makes to health and 
well-being though the provision of good quality accessible green 
space. The Well-being Plan also aims to help residents manage 
their own physical and mental well-being by creating supportive 
environments to do this. Working in partnership with the rest of the 
public sector is intrinsically linked to how we will deliver sport and 
active recreation. 

Additional text inserted at page 8  

Linking with the emerging Green 
Infrastructure Strategy – to consider 
delivery of services and natural/built 
infrastructure that deliver multiple 
benefits. 

The Green Infrastructure Strategy has not yet been drafted, but the 
link is accepted. 

Add reference to the emerging 
Green Infrastructure Strategy at 
page 30. 

Planning - consideration of usable 
sport and active recreation spaces at 
the planning stage of any 
developments, in particular, housing 
developments. 

Agreed. This opportunity is recognised in the draft Strategy. No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

 

What Needs To Be Done 
 

P
age 89



Report of Consultation October 2018 
 

 

 

 

13 
 

Corporate Policy 

If respondents disagreed with any of the statements relating to Corporate Policy they were asked to suggest alternative ways forward. 

 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Keeping costs down was a concern, in 
particular, ensuring that alternative and 
school-based provision does not cost 
more however, a number also 
suggested increasing charges could be 
a means of keeping facilities open. 

Affordability is a concern and the Strategy aims to maximise sport 
and active recreation opportunities for all across the county 
borough. The proposed approach to facilities aims to allow for 
investment in high quality facilities, recognising that income is an 
important part of any business model, but avoiding excessive 
charges that would present a barrier to participation.  

No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

Making better use of a range of other 
venues was supported by many 
although smaller proportion of 
respondents supported joint school 
use.  Concerns were raised over the 
capacity of schools to run facilities and 
restrictions on access to facilities 
(opening times, school holiday 
closures) 

The Strategy recognises the importance of schools as an essential 
part of the future community sport and active 
recreation offer and the Council will work with schools to help them 
meet their needs and those of the wider community. 

No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

Ensuring a multi-agency approach that 
encourages healthy lifestyles beyond 
exercise. 

The Strategy highlights the broad collaboration with our partners, 
but there is an opportunity to be clearer about the links between 
this Strategy and the Caerphilly Public Services Board’s Well being 
Plan across health and well-being, social connections and cohesive 
communities, volunteering and active citizenship, culture, economic 
opportunity and the natural environment.    

Additional text added at page 8. 

 

Facilities 

P
age 90



Report of Consultation October 2018 
 

 

 

 

14 
 

If respondents disagreed with any of the statements relating to Facilities they were asked to suggest alternative ways forward. 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

 The lack of capacity of remaining 
facilities to support an expanding 
population; 

 The suitability of alternative 
facilities for certain activities  

 Ensuring a full cost benefit 
analysis is undertaken before any 
decisions are made 

 Specifically, there was opposition 
to the potential closure of Cefn 
Fforest and Pontllanfraith Leisure 
Centres.  Proposed that alternative 
provision is available to meet the 
demand for services in the area 
e.g. swimming pool capacity at 
other leisure centres if Cefn 
Fforest is to close. 

The draft strategy recommends adoption of the Welsh Government 
Facilities for Future Generations blueprint to support decision 
making in respect of the built infrastructure, across the lifetime (10 
years) of the strategy. As the service evolves to the new model of 
delivery careful consideration will be given to opportunities for 
alternative provision before any facilities are withdrawn. Any 
proposed changes to the existing portfolio will be subject to robust 
business cases at the appropriate time, considering the authority’s 
unique position in respect of delivery and opportunity. 

Text added at page 30 to confirm 
that careful consideration will be 
given to opportunities for alternative 
provision before any facilities are 
withdrawn.   

 

Respondents were asked to outline what they felt the impact would be on them of rationalising facilities so that the Council’s Sport and 
Leisure service directly manages 4 strategic leisure centres located in Risca, Caerphilly, Newbridge and one in the Bargoed/Aberbargoed 
areas with other leisure centres either transferring to school management (if they are joint use facilities located on a school site, subject 
to governing body approval) or closing completely. 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Increased travel time and distance for 
those who drive. 

There may be an increased travel time and distance for some; this 
may be reduced for others. 

No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

P
age 91



Report of Consultation October 2018 
 

 

 

 

15 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

 

Increased cost of travel. 
 

There may be an increased cost of travel for some; this may be 
reduced for others. 

No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

Concern relating to inadequate public 
transport provision to sites. 
 

The locations of the 4 strategic leisure centres are all accessible by 
public transport. 

No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

Reduced availability and access to 
facilities (capacity and opening hours) 

Careful consideration will be given to opportunities for alternative 
provision before any facilities are withdrawn. Focussing on 4 
strategic leisure centres directly managed by the Council’s Sport 
and Leisure service will support investment in multi-functional 
facilities and allow opening hours to be maximised. 

Text added at page 30 to confirm 
that careful consideration will be 
given to opportunities for alternative 
provision before any facilities are 
withdrawn.   

Fair geographical distribution Agreed - All future provision will be accessible by public transport 
and will ensure, so far as reasonably practicable, geographic 
coverage across the county borough. Implementation ensures a fair 
and just allocation of resources that will provide for continued sport 
and leisure provision into the future for the benefit of all. 
 

No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

Capacity of swimming pools for 
swimming lessons. 

Noted - It is clear that we need to clarify our unique position in 
respect of aquatic delivery. Any changes to aquatic provision will be 
subject to robust business cases across the lifetime of the Strategy 
that support our unique position, the financial climate and the 
requirement to provide the appropriate facility mix to support a 
broad range of delivery options. 

No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

Support for development of strategic 
sites in Caerphilly and Bargoed. 

The draft strategy clearly articulates the vision to maximise 
resources through the delivery of four strategically located leisure 
facilities that provide fair and equitable access to all residents. The 
anticipated population growth in the south of the county borough, 
along with the current condition of the existing facility and 
opportunity to develop a fit for purpose, better quality leisure centre 
that supports the Facilities for Future Generations blueprint, clearly 

No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

P
age 92



Report of Consultation October 2018 
 

 

 

 

16 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

identifies that this area of the county borough is of significant 
importance. Further, delivering a high quality leisure facility that 
supports the north of the county borough, in partnership with Welsh 
Governments 21st Century Schools programme is also a key 
aspiration 

 
 
If respondents indicated that the impact of rationalising leisure facilities will be negative, they were asked what could be done to mitigate 
the impact on them and their family. 

 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

Ensure that alternative provision is in 
place before centres are closed 
  

Careful consideration will be given to opportunities for alternative 
provision before any facilities are withdrawn. Focussing on 4 
strategic leisure centres directly managed by the Council’s Sport 
and Leisure service will support investment in multi-functional 
facilities and allow opening hours to be maximised. 

Text added at page 30 to confirm 
that careful consideration will be 
given to opportunities for alternative 
provision before any facilities are 
withdrawn.   

Maximise the use of local assets 
(community centres, church halls etc) 
to provide classes etc 

Maximising the use of all our community amenities and the local 
environment is an Action identified in the Strategy under Outcome 
3: A more efficient and financially sustainable future provision. 

No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

Ensuring that there is adequate 
capacity within remaining facilities if 
leisure centres are to close 

Careful consideration will be given to opportunities for alternative 
provision before any facilities are withdrawn. Focussing on 4 
strategic leisure centres directly managed by the Council’s Sport 
and Leisure service will support investment in multi-functional 
facilities and allow opening hours to be maximised. 

Text added at page 30 to confirm 
that careful consideration will be 
given to opportunities for alternative 
provision before any facilities are 
withdrawn.   

 

Sport and active recreation outreach and intervention programmes 

P
age 93



Report of Consultation October 2018 
 

 

 

 

17 
 

If respondents disagreed with any of the statements relating to outreach and intervention programmes, they were asked to suggest an 
alternative way forward. 
 

Issues Raised Officer Response Recommendation 

A need to monitor and evidence the 
effectiveness of intervention 
programmes 
  

Agreed, intervention programmes are evaluated. No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

Ensuring sustainability of provision 
when relying on volunteers or private 
companies moving forward 

Agreed. No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

Considering the negative impact of 
rationalising leisure centres on local 
clubs who use these facilities 

Careful consideration will be given to opportunities for alternative 
provision before any facilities are withdrawn. 

Text added at page 30 to confirm 
that careful consideration will be 
given to opportunities for alternative 
provision before any facilities are 
withdrawn.   

A need to work with parents to ensure 
they encourage and adopt healthy 
active lifestyles for themselves and 
their families. 

Our vision for sport and active recreation is to encourage healthy 
lifestyles and support our residents to be more active, more often. 

No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

Encouraging a Gwent wide approach 
with cross border access to facilities 

The Council is playing a lead role in the regional Active Gwent 
collaboration programme to increase participation in sport and 
physical activity in a way that has the greatest impact in Caerphilly. 

No changes proposed to the draft 
strategy. 

 
 

P
age 94



 

APPENDIX 3 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM 
 

 

THE COUNCIL’S EQUALITIES STATEMENT 
 
This Council recognises that people have different needs, requirements and goals and we 
will work actively against all forms of discrimination by promoting good relations and 
mutual respect within and between our communities, residents, elected members, job 
applicants and workforce. 
 
We will also work to create equal access for everyone to our services, irrespective of 
ethnic origin, sex, age, marital status, sexual orientation, disability, gender reassignment, 
religious beliefs or non-belief, use of Welsh language, BSL or other languages, nationality, 
responsibility for any dependents or any other reason which cannot be shown to be 
justified. 
 

NAME OF NEW OR 
REVISED PROPOSAL* 

 
Caerphilly County Borough Sport & Active Recreation 
Strategy 2018-2028 
 

DIRECTORATE Communities 
 
 

SERVICE AREA Communities & Leisure 
 
 

CONTACT OFFICER  
Rob Hartshorn 
 

 
*Throughout this Equalities Impact Assessment Form, ‘proposal’ is 
used to refer to what is being assessed, and therefore includes policies, 
strategies, functions, procedures, practices, initiatives, projects and 
savings proposals.  
  

Page 95



INTRODUCTION 
 
The aim of an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is to ensure that Equalities and Welsh Language 
issues have been proactively considered throughout the decision making processes governing 
work undertaken by every service area in the Council as well as work done at a corporate level. 
 
It also helps the Council to meet its legal responsibilities under the Equality Act 2010 (Statutory 
Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011, the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and supports the 
wider aims of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. There is also a requirement 
under Human Rights legislation for Local Authorities to consider Human Rights in developing 
proposals. 
 
Specifically, Section 147 of the Equality Act 2010 is the provision that requires decision-makers to 
have ‘due regard’ to the equality implications of their decisions and Welsh Language Standards 88-
97 require specific consideration of Welsh speakers under the Welsh Language Standards (No.1) 
Regulations 2015. 
 
The Council’s work across Equalities, Welsh Language and Human Rights is covered in more 
detail through the Equalities and Welsh Language Objectives and Action Plan 2016-2020. 
 
 

PURPOSE OF THE PROPOSAL 
 

1 What is the proposal intended to achieve? 
(Please give a brief description of the purpose of the new or updated proposal by way 
of introduction.) 
 
The Council has identified the need and opportunity to develop a strategic approach 
to shape the future of its sport and active recreation services.  
 
The Strategy aims to establish a joined up vision for future provision, setting clear 
outcomes recognising the contribution that sport and active recreation makes to 
economic, social, environmental & cultural well-being. 
 

  

2 Who are the service users affected by the proposal? 
(Who will be affected by the delivery of this proposal? e.g. staff members, the public 
generally, or specific sections of the public i.e. youth groups, carers, road users, 
people using country parks, people on benefits etc.) 
 
The Sport and Active Recreation Strategy affects the public generally and in 
particular current, potential and future users of the following: 
 

 Outdoor and Indoor Sport and Leisure Facilities; 

 Sports Development programmes; 

 Staff 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 96



IMPACT ON THE PUBLIC AND STAFF 
 

3 Does the proposal ensure that everyone has an equal access to all the 
services available or proposed, or benefits equally from the proposed 
changes, or does not lose out in greater or more severe ways due to the 
proposals? 
(What has been done to examine whether or not these groups have equal access to 
the service, or whether they need to receive the service in a different way from other 
people?) 
 
Sport and active recreation provision is not a statutory requirement of Local 
Government in Wales.  The Council heavily subsidises Sport and Leisure Services 
provision in Caerphilly.  This subsidy is not necessarily strategically directed nor 
applied consistently which results in operational anomalies.  Reducing revenue and 
capital resources need to be balanced against crucial health and well-being priorities 
and focus on making the most impact possible on health and well-being inequalities, 
which will facilitate continued provision of a range of opportunities to benefit our 
residents. 
 
The Strategy proposes a rationalisation of facilities to achieve a sustainable future 
service alongside investment of some savings to enhance the quality and customer 
offer at strategic sites. The new model of service delivery will evolve over the 10 year 
lifetime of the Strategy and careful consideration will be given to opportunities for 
alternative provision before any facilities are withdrawn.   
 
Whilst some existing facilities might close which may result in some users having 
longer travel time to facilities, all of the proposed strategic facilities are fully 
accessible, have ample disabled parking, and are accessible by public transport. All 
future provision will so far as reasonably practicable ensure geographic coverage 
across the county borough. Implementation ensures a fair and just allocation of 
resources that will provide for continued sport and active recreation provision into the 
future for the benefit of all.  
 
New and refurbished facilities will be more attractive and accessible to families and 
people with carers. An ongoing investment strategy will ensure that our leisure 
facilities are maintained and that equipment is replaced, making them more attractive 
to all users and improving access equally. 
 
A collaborative approach aims to motivate children and young people to adopt and 
continue healthy active lifestyles through inspirational physical activity experiences 
whilst they are in education, whilst also ensuring the learning environments are 
maximised for community use out of school hours.  
 
There is a coordinated approach between schools & Caerphilly Adventures in the 
engagement of the Duke of Edinburgh Awards helping young people to gain skills for 
life delivering better educational, employment, and social outcomes for the benefit of 
all of our communities. 
 
The Council’s sport and active recreation outreach and intervention provides 
targeted support to help keep older people involved and active in local communities 
helping local organisations to provide ways of supporting older people/less 
independent people lead healthy lives through low intensity, social, and easy to 

Page 97



access physical activities.   
 
The Strategy aims to deliver sustainable sport and active recreation provision that 
can be maintained at a level of service which is comparable with other Local 
Authorities. Facilities will be improved and the Council will take steps to mitigate any 
negative impacts and will work to address access for older people, younger people, 
and disabled people who rely on forms of transport other than private cars.  
 

 Actions required:  
1. Give careful consideration to opportunities for alternative provision before any 
facilities are withdrawn. 
2. Take steps to mitigate any negative impacts due to longer travel distances and 
work to address access for people who rely on forms of transport other than private 
cars. 
 
 

  

Page 98



 

4. What are the impacts of the proposals? 

Protected Group Positive 
Impact? 

Negative 
Impact? 

No 
Specific 
Impact 

What will the impact be? If the impact is negative how can it be 
mitigated? (action) 

Gender Male   X  

Female   X We provide female only activities as part of our routine service 
delivery. 
Action: Sustain female only activities at existing service 
levels.  

Transgender   X The Council is sensitive to issues around changing, but has not 
had any representations’ or engagement on this issue to date. 

Religion    X  

Race    X There is no evidence available to the Council to suggest a 
negative impact due to race. 

Disability  X X  Where leisure facilities are closed people with disabilities may be 
more greatly affected if this results in longer travel times to 
alternative facilities. However, all of the proposed strategic 
facilities are fully accessible, have ample disabled parking, and 
are accessible by public transport.  
 
The Strategy aims to sustain sport and active recreation 
provision in the county borough alongside investment of some 
savings to enhance the quality and customer offer at strategic 
sites. It provides the opportunity to promote and increase 
participation in sport and active recreation. 
 
New and refurbished facilities will be more attractive and 
accessible to families and people with carers. An ongoing 
investment strategy will ensure that our leisure facilities are 
maintained and that equipment is replaced, making them more 
attractive to all users and improving access equally. 
 
The public consultation process has been used to seek views 
and information from individuals and from groups representing 

P
age 99



disabled people. Careful consideration will be given to 
opportunities for alternative provision before any facilities are 
withdrawn. 
 
In promoting a sustainable vision for sport and leisure provision it 
is recognised that participation in physical activity can have a 
positive effect on both mental and physical health. In particular 
levels of cardio vascular disease and type 2 diabetes are 
particularly high in the county. Participation in a physical activity 
can significantly reduce the risks for both existing sufferers and 
those most vulnerable. 
 
Action: Give careful consideration to opportunities for 
alternative provision before any facilities are withdrawn. 
Action: Take steps to mitigate any negative impacts and 
work to address access for disabled people who rely on 
forms of transport other than private cars. 
 

Sexual 
Orientation 

   X  

Age Older People X X  The Strategy aims to sustain sport and active recreation 
provision in the county borough alongside investment of some 
savings to enhance the quality and customer offer at strategic 
sites. It provides the opportunity to promote and increase 
participation in sport and active recreation. However there may 
be some negative impact where there are increased travel 
distances following any rationalisation of facilities. 
 
The public consultation process has been used to seek views 
and information from individuals and from groups representing 
older people. Careful consideration will be given to opportunities 
for alternative provision before any facilities are withdrawn. 
 
The Council’s sport and active recreation outreach and 

P
age 100



intervention provides targeted support to help keep older people 
involved and active in local communities helping local 
organisations to provide ways of supporting older people/less 
independent people lead healthy lives through low intensity, 
social and easy to access physical activities.   
 
We will also support individuals by providing specialist 
interventions to reach targeted audiences in our communities 
where there is evidence of need and no other alternative 
provider. 
 
Action: Give careful consideration to opportunities for 
alternative provision before any facilities are withdrawn. 
Action: Take steps to mitigate any negative impacts and 
work to address access for older people who rely on forms 
of transport other than private cars. 
 

Children and 
Younger People 
(Under 25) 

X X  The Strategy aims to sustain sport and active recreation 
provision in the county borough for future generations alongside 
investment of some savings to enhance the quality and customer 
offer at strategic sites. It provides the opportunity to promote and 
increase participation in sport and active recreation. However 
there may be some negative impact where there are increased 
travel distances following any rationalisation of facilities. 
 
The public consultation process has been used to seek views 
and information from individuals and from groups representing 
children and young people. Careful consideration will be given to 
opportunities for alternative provision before any facilities are 
withdrawn. 
 
Young people attending schools where there was joint use would 
benefit from access to enhanced sport and leisure facilities 
during the school day. A joint sport and active recreation and 

P
age 101



schools strategy will be pursued to achieve a single, shared 
outcome of more young people becoming active adults through 
more inspirational learning experiences. 
 
A collaborative approach with schools to motivate children and 
young people to adopt and continue healthy active lifestyles 
through inspirational physical activity experiences whilst they are 
in education. 
 
Action: Give careful consideration to opportunities for 
alternative provision before any facilities are withdrawn. 
Action: Take steps to mitigate any negative impacts and 
work to address access for younger people who rely on 
forms of transport other than private cars. 
 

Marriage & 
Civil 
Partnership 

   X  

Pregnancy & 
Maternity 

   X We have identified no adverse impact as long as pre and post 
natal classes are sustained at existing service levels. 

Socio-
economic 
Background 

 X   All future provision will be accessible by public transport and will 
ensure, so far as reasonably practicable, geographic coverage 
across the county borough. Implementation ensures a fair and 
just allocation of resources that will provide for continued sport 
and leisure provision into the future for the benefit of all. 
 
The Strategy proposes a financially sustainable vision to secure 
sport and active recreation provision in the county borough into 
the future. In doing so any financial pressure to increase prices 
for customers is reduced thereby promoting accessibility across 
socio-economic groups. 
 
The Strategy proposes the redevelopment of Caerphilly Leisure 
Centre which is in the vicinity of the most deprived locality (St 

P
age 102



James 3) in the whole of Wales as defined within the Wales 
Index of Multiple Deprivation. 
 
The Council’s unique role will focus on: 

I. Working with others to make the best use of all available 
opportunities, facilities,  funding and people; 

II. Making better and more innovative use of the widest 
possible range of indoor and outdoor physical activity 
spaces across all communities; 

III. Specialist interventions in approaches and places that will 
have the greatest long term health impact on priority 
target audiences in our communities and where no others 
are in a position to provide such assistance. 

 

 

P
age 103



 

 

5 In line with the requirements of the Welsh Language Standards. (No.1) 
Regulations 2015, please note below what effects, if any (whether positive or 
adverse), the proposal would have on opportunities for persons to use the 
Welsh language, and treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the 
English language. 
(The specific Policy Making Standards requirements are Standard numbers 88, 89, 
90, 91, 92 and 93. The full detail of each Standard is available on the Equalities and 
Welsh Language Portal) 
 
 
The Sport and Active Recreation Strategy will not have any effects on opportunities 
for persons to use the Welsh language, and treating the Welsh language no less 
favourably than the English language. 
 
 
 

 Actions required: None 
 
 

 

INFORMATION COLLECTION 
 

6 Is full information and analysis of users of the service available? 
(Is this service effectively engaging with all its potential users or is there higher or 
lower participation of uptake by one or more groups? If so, what has been done to 
address any difference in take up of the service? Does any savings proposals include 
an analysis of those affected?) 
 
 
In 2016 26.9% of people in the county borough aged 16-64 were disabled as defined 
by the Equality Act. 
In the 2011 Census 97.6% of the population are identified as 
English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern Irish/British. 
50.7 are identified as being of Christian religion with 48.32% identified as having no 
religion or religion not stated. 
50.95% of the population of the county borough were female and 49.05% male.  
 
There are limitations in the data that we hold, but information analysis of 152,000 
Sport and Leisure service users who hold Smartcards is as follows: 
43% male, 52% female, 5% unspecified; 
1.3% disabled;  
3 different ages groups comprising of 50.9% aged 25-64, 35.9% under 25 and 13.2% 
over 64. 
95.1% of Smartcard holders identified as English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern 
Irish/British 
 
We do not hold data regarding other services users or other protected characteristics. 
 
 

Page 104



 Actions required: We have highlighted above limitations in the information that we 
hold, but have used the public consultation process to strengthen this position and 
engaged directly with:  
Youth forum 
50+ forum 
Age Cymru 
Deafblind.org 
RNIB Cymru 
Action Hearing Loss Cymru 
BDA 
Disability Can Do 
Caerphilly County Borough Access Group 
Caerphilly People First 
Disability Sports Wales 
Caerphilly Borough Mind 
Gwent Education Multi-Ethnic Service (GEMS) 
Race Equality Council 
SEWREC 
Umbrella Cymru 
LGBTQ+ youth group 
Stonewall Cymru 
Menter Iaith 
Welsh Language Forum 
 

 

 
CONSULTATION 
 

7 What consultation has taken place? 
(What steps have been taken to ensure that people from various groups have been 
consulted during the development of this proposal? Have the Council’s Equalities 
staff been consulted? Have you referred to the Equalities Consultation and 
Monitoring Guidance?) 
 
A ten week consultation period was undertaken to obtain the views of Caerphilly 
County Borough residents, existing users and a broad range of stakeholders. Views 
were sought via a questionnaire and 11 drop-in sessions that were held across the 
county borough to provide the opportunity for one to one discussions with Officers. 
As well as other stakeholders we also engaged directly with the following: 
 
Youth forum 
50+ forum 
Age Cymru 
Deafblind.org 
RNIB Cymru 
Action Hearing Loss Cymru 
BDA 
Disability Can Do 
Caerphilly County Borough Access Group 
Caerphilly People First 
Disability Sports Wales 

Page 105



Caerphilly Borough Mind 
Gwent Education Multi-Ethnic Service (GEMS) 
Race Equality Council 
SEWREC 
Umbrella Cymru 
LGBTQ+ youth group 
Stonewall Cymru 
Menter Iaith 
Welsh Language Forum 
 
711 responses were received to the consultation questionnaire with a further 20 
written responses also being received. 
 
A 2 minute video was released explaining the key points of the Strategy. 
 
135,809 individuals were reached via social media with 7,242 likes, shares and 
comments and 250 consultation link clicks. 
 
 

  
 
 

 

 
 
MONITORING AND REVIEW 
 

8 How will the proposal be monitored? 
(What monitoring process has been set up to assess the extent that the service is 
being used by all sections of the community, or that the savings proposals are 
achieving the intended outcomes with no adverse impact? Are comments or 
complaints systems set up to record issues by Equalities category to be able analyse 
responses from particular groups?)  
 
There are limitations in the data that we hold but we have used the public 
consultation on the Strategy to strengthen our understanding. 
 

 Actions required:  
1. Continue to review customer feedback via established Sport & Leisure Service 
systems. 
 
 

 

 

9 How will the monitoring be evaluated? 
(What methods will be used to ensure that the needs of all sections of the community 
are being met?) 
 
 Sport and Leisure Services operate a robust, systematic Customer Comments 
process that is regularly reviewed for trend data. 
 

Page 106



Regular engagement with groups, clubs and organisations  
 
Customer Satisfaction survey and Net Promotor Score process 
 

 Actions required: None 
 

 

10 Have any support / guidance / training requirements been identified? 
(Has the EIA or consultation process shown a need for awareness raising amongst 
staff, or identified the need for Equalities or Welsh Language training of some sort?) 
 
No 
 

 Actions required: None 
 

 
 

11 Where you have identified mitigating factors in previous answers that lessen 
the impact on any particular group in the community, or have identified any 
elsewhere, please summarise them here.  

 
The proposal will ensure future sport and active recreation provision in the county 
borough alongside investment of some savings to enhance the quality and customer 
offer at strategic sites. It provides the opportunity to promote and increase 
participation in sport and active recreation. Careful consideration will be given to 
opportunities for alternative provision before any facilities are withdrawn. 
 
Disability 
 
All of the proposed strategic facilities will be fully accessible and accessible by public 
transport.  
 
New and refurbished facilities will be more attractive and accessible to families and 
people with carers. 
 
New and refurbished facilities with modern and accessible equipment will encourage 
people with mobility impairments to become more active. 
 
In promoting a sustainable vision for sport and active recreation provision it is 
recognised that participation in physical activity can have a positive effect on both 
mental and physical health. In particular levels of cardio vascular disease and type 2 
diabetes are particularly high in the county. Participation in a physical activity can 
significantly reduce the risks for both existing sufferers and those most vulnerable. 
 
Gender 
 
We provide female only activities as part of our routine service delivery. 
 
 
Age 
 
As identified in Section 3 above young people will benefit positively from the 

Page 107



enhanced collaboration between the Sport and Leisure service and schools as well 
as from the strengthening of the Duke of Edinburgh Award scheme. 
 
New and refurbished facilities with modern equipment will be particularly attractive to 
young people and therefore enhance accessibility. 
 

 
 
Summary of Proposed Actions: 
 
1. Give careful consideration to opportunities for alternative provision before 
any facilities are withdrawn. 
2. Take steps to mitigate any negative impacts due to longer travel distances 
and work to address access for people who rely on forms of transport other 
than private cars. 
3. Sustain female only activities at existing service levels. 
4. Continue to review customer feedback via established Sport & Leisure 
Service systems. 
 
 
 

 

12 What outcome does this Equality Impact Assessment suggest you take? You 
might find that more than one applies. Please explain why you have come to this 
decision. 
 

Outcome 1  No major change needed – the EIA hasn’t 
identified any potential for discrimination or 
negative impact and all opportunities to 
advance equality have been taken 

Outcome 2  Adjust the policy to remove barriers 
identified by the EIA or better advance 
equality. Are you satisfied that the proposed 
adjustments will remove the barriers you 
identified? 

Outcome 3 X Continue the policy despite potential for 
negative impact. 

Outcome 4  Stop and rethink the policy when the EIA 
shows actual or potential unlawful 
discrimination. 

 
 

 Our Assessment is Outcome 3 – Continue the Policy 
 
We have reached this conclusion because although the potential for some negative 
impacts have been identified actions are proposed to mitigate these and the impacts 
are outweighed by the overall benefits of ensuring sustainable sport and active 
recreation provision across the county borough. This assessment has been informed 
by the extensive consultation process. 

 

Page 108



 

Completed by: Rob Hartshorn 

Date: 22nd October 2018 

Position: Head of Public Protection, Community & 
Leisure Services 

 
 

Page 109



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 110


	Agenda
	3 Cabinet a gynhaliwyd ar 31 Hydref 2018.
	4 Cynigion Cyllideb Drafft ar gyfer 2019/20.
	Draft Budget Proposals for 2019-20
	cabinet - 14th november 2018
	SUBJECT: draft budget proposals for 2019/20
	REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION & CORPORATE SERVICES
	1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
	2. SUMMARY
	3. LINKS TO STRATEGY
	4. THE REPORT
	Table 3 – Inescapable Service Pressures and Other Service Commitments
	5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS
	6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
	7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
	8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS
	9. CONSULTATIONS
	10.  RECOMMENDATIONS
	11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS
	12. STATUTORY POWER

	Draft Budget Proposals for 2019-20 Appendix 1
	Appendix 1

	Draft Budget Proposals for 2019-20 Appendix 2
	Appendix 2

	Draft Budget Proposals for 2019-20 Appendix 3
	Appendix 3


	5 Rhybudd o Gynnig - Strategaeth Chwaraeon a Hamdden 2019-2029.
	Atodiad 1
	Notice of Motion - Sport and Active Recreation Strategy (SARS) 2019-2029
	REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
	30th OCTOBER 2018
	SUBJECT: NOTICE OF MOTION - SPORT AND ACTIVE RECREATION STRATEGY (SARS) 2019-2029
	REPORT BY: INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITIES
	1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
	2. summary
	3. LINKS TO STRATEGY
	4. REPORT
	5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS
	6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
	7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
	8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS
	9. CONSULTATIONS
	10. RECOMMENDATIONS
	11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATION
	12. STATUTORY POWER

	Notice of Motion - Sport and Active Recreation Strategy (SARS) 2019-2029 App 1


	6 Strategaeth Ddrafft Chwaraeon a Hamdden Egnïol 2019-29.
	Draft Sport and Active Recreation Strategy 2019-29
	Draft Sport and Active Recreation Strategy 2019-29 App 1
	Draft Sport and Active Recreation Strategy 2019-29 App 2
	Draft Sport & Active Recreation Strategy EIA App 3


